
Special Meeting of the Board of Directors

Annual Retreat

Mar 17, 2015 at 07:30 AM - Mar 18, 2015 at 04:30 PM

Big Pine Room, Granlibakken Conference Center

725 Granlibakken Road

Tahoe City, CA 96145

,



AGENDA
 

a. Krause _Rural PRIME Site Clerkship Director
 
b. Krause_Rural PRIME Site Medical Director
 
c. Samelson_PSA Medical Director Medical Education
Committee
 
B) Executive Summary for contracts d - f
NOTE: The following contracts are the same for each
physician and the referenced exhibits have been
uploaded separately (exhibits are the same for each
contract).
** these 3 contracts are referred by Governance
Committee to the full board as part of the regular agenda
to provide opportunity for discussion if desired.

d. Thompson_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015
 
e. Taylor_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015
 
f. Coll_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015
 

4.1.1. New
 

4.1. Contracts
 

4. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
 

a) Executive Summary
 

5.1. Chief Executive Officer Search Process
 

a) ABD-12 Guidelines for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board
of Directors
 

5.2. Board Order & Decorum
 

5.4. Strategic Plan Review and Chief Executive Officer Goals
 

b) Memo to Board re: Internal process for recruitment of CEO
 

b) ABD-17 Manner Of Governance For TFHD Board of Directors
 

BREAK
 
5.3. Board Order & Decorum – continued
 

5. RETREAT ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION - Day 1
 

10. RETREAT ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION - Day 2

2015 Mar 17-18, 2015 Board Retreat_Agenda
 

ITEMS 1-3 See Agenda
 

Exhibits to Contracts d - f
 

a) Strategic Plan - Fiscal Year 2015/2017
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

Items 7-10 See Agenda
 

Meeting Book - 2015 Mar 17-18 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors - RETREAT

Agenda Packet Contents

Page 4

Page 7

Page 17

Page 27

Page 35

Page 36

Page 40

Page 44

Page 48

Page 76

Page 77

Page 79

Page 87

Page 103



a) 2014 Board Self Assessment
 

10.3. Board Priorities and Goals
 

10.1. Introduction and Ground Rules
 
10.2. Board SWOT Analysis
 

10. RETREAT ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION - Day 2
 

b) Board 2015 Draft Short Term Goals
 

11. SUMMARY and NEXT STEPS
 

Page 104

Page 133



  Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

  
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

RETREAT AGENDA  
(Day 1 of 2) 

Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at 8:00 a.m. 
Big Pine Room, Granlibakken Conference Center & Lodge 

725 Granlibakken Road Tahoe City, CA 96145 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are, or are not, on 
the agenda.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the 
Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 
54954.2 – Brown Act, the Board cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board may choose 
to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, 
or set the item for discussion at a future meeting.  
 

4. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 
4.1. Contracts [8:00 – 8:15 a.m.] 

4.1.1. New  
a. Krause _Rural PRIME Site Clerkship Director  ............................................................ ATTACHMENT 
b. Krause_Rural PRIME Site Medical Director ............................................................... ATTACHMENT 
c. Samelson_PSA Medical Director Medical Education Committee  ............................. ATTACHMENT 
d. Thompson_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015 ...................................................... ATTACHMENT 
e. Taylor_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015  ............................................................. ATTACHMENT 
f. Coll_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015  ................................................................. ATTACHMENT 

 
5. RETREAT ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION   

No formal action will be taken by the Board of Directors; only direction to staff.  Any action items will be 
agendized for a regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
5.1. CEO Search Process [8:15 – 9:15 a.m.]   ............................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

The Board will be provided background related to the process of selection for an executive search firm 
and recruitment of a Chief Executive Officer.  

 
BREAK 
 
5.2. Board Order & Decorum [9:30 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.]  ........................................................... *ATTACHMENT 

The Board will be provided education and training related to board order and decorum best practices, 
review of the Brown Act and ethics laws. 

4 of 134



Special meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
March 17 & 18, 2015 RETREAT AGENDA – Continued 

  Page 2 of 3 

 
LUNCH 
 
5.3. Board Order & Decorum – continued [1:00 p.m. – 2:30 p.m.]  ......................................... *ATTACHMENT 

The Board will be provided education and training related to board order and decorum best practices, 
review of the Brown Act and ethics laws. 

 
BREAK 
 
5.4. Strategic Plan Review and Chief Executive Officer Goals [2:45 p.m. – 3:45 p.m.]  ............ ATTACHMENT 

The current strategic plan will be reviewed and the Board will identify priority initiatives on which the 
Interim Chief Executive Officer should focus. 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT [3:45 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.] 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourn meeting to Wednesday, March 18, 2015 at 8:00 a.m. at the Big Pine Room, Granlibakken 
Conference Center & Lodge, 725 Granlibakken Road Tahoe City, CA 96145 
 

~~~ 
RETREAT AGENDA 

(Day 2 of 2) 
Wednesday, March 18, 2015 at 8:00 a.m. 

Big Pine Room, Granlibakken Conference Center & Lodge 
725 Granlibakken Road Tahoe City, CA 96145 

 
8. CALL TO ORDER 

 
9. ROLL CALL 
 
10. RETREAT ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION   

No formal action will be taken by the Board of Directors; only direction to staff.  Any action items will be 
agendized for a regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
10.1. Introduction and Ground Rules [8:00 – 8:45 a.m.] .......................................................... *ATTACHMENT 

The Board will discuss and agree to ground rules for the conduct of the day’s retreat activities. 
 
BREAK 

 
10.2. Board SWOT Analysis [9:00 – 11:00 a.m.]  ...................................................................... *ATTACHMENT 

The Board will participate in a Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) exercise. 
 

LUNCH 
 

5 of 134



Special meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
March 17 & 18, 2015 RETREAT AGENDA – Continued 

 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is March 31, 2015, 11603 Donner 
Pass Rd., Truckee, CA.  A copy of the Board meeting agenda is posted on the District’s web site (www.tfhd.com) at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting or 24 hours prior to a Special Board Meeting. 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices on the basis 
of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate participation of the 
disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact 
the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
10.3. Board Priorities and Goals [11:30 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.]  ......................................................... ATTACHMENT 

The Board will discuss 2015 board priorities and goals. 
 
BREAK 

 
11. SUMMARY and NEXT STEPS [2:15 – 3:15 p.m.] 

12. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT ..................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Board will identify and discuss any occurrences during the meeting that impacted the effectiveness and 
value of the meeting. 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT [3:15 – 3:30 p.m.] 
 

14. ADJOURN 
 

 

6 of 134



7 of 134



8 of 134



9 of 134



10 of 134



11 of 134



12 of 134



13 of 134



14 of 134



15 of 134



16 of 134



17 of 134



18 of 134



19 of 134



20 of 134



21 of 134



22 of 134



23 of 134



24 of 134



25 of 134



26 of 134



27 of 134



28 of 134



29 of 134



30 of 134



31 of 134



32 of 134



33 of 134



34 of 134



35 of 134



36 of 134



37 of 134



38 of 134



39 of 134



40 of 134



41 of 134



42 of 134



43 of 134



44 of 134



45 of 134



46 of 134



47 of 134



48 of 134



49 of 134



50 of 134



51 of 134



52 of 134



53 of 134



54 of 134



55 of 134



56 of 134



57 of 134



58 of 134



59 of 134



60 of 134



61 of 134



62 of 134



63 of 134



64 of 134



65 of 134



66 of 134



67 of 134



68 of 134



69 of 134



70 of 134



71 of 134



72 of 134



73 of 134



74 of 134



75 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
Board Executive Summary 

 
  By: Jayne O’Flanagan 
  Chief Human Resources Officer 
 
 
   DATE: March 12, 2015 
 
 
ISSUE:    
Recruitment process for Chief Executive Officer position 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board has agreed to enter into a recruitment process for the CEO position, timing of 
recruitment effort has not been determined.  Attached is a summary of the District’s recruitment 
process and information on recruitment/management firms and their services.   
 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
Feedback from the Board on changes to the process 
Appointment of Personnel Committee or others to begin to research recruitment firm options 
 
 
 
Alternatives: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76 of 134



  
Page 1 

 
  

Chief Executive Officer Recruitment 

 
Internal process for recruitment of CEO 

 Board utilizes support of Human Resources Director to assist with search firm options 
 Board assigns responsibility to engage a search firm and source candidates to either a 

special committee or the Personnel Committee 
 Board engages in discussion with search firm as to what makes an ideal candidate 
 Board determines final selection panel; Board, Medical Staff, hospital staff, community 
 Top candidates are presented to Board for review 
 Board narrows candidate selection 
 Interviews are conducted 
 Final candidates interview with others as identified above 
 Board makes final selection 

Search firms 
Each search firm offers different services but all follow the basic steps of  

 Defining candidate specifications with Board of Directors and other interest groups 
identified by the Board based on local issues, hospital situation, culture 

 Defining appropriate pay and benefits 
 Attracting, screening and evaluating qualified candidates 
 Interviewing selected candidates 
 Assisting Board in selection of new executive 

Firms have different levels of assistance.  Some are recruitment firms only.  Others have the 
ability to place interim management, provide contracted management services and assist with 
recruitment and placement.  The following firms are well respected in the healthcare industry.   

Firm Specialty Services 
HFS Consultants 
Healthcare Management and 
Financial Consulting 

Healthcare only Sources interim management 
candidates 
Recruitment and placement 

Hunter Ambrose CAH only.  Focuses on 25 
healthcare positions 

Recruitment and placement  
 

Witt/Kieffer Healthcare, life science 
companies, higher 
education, not-for profit 

Recruitment and placement 

QHR 
Quorum Health Resources 

Healthcare only Places interim management if 
needed (QHR employee) 
Evaluation of  management 
structure 
Contract management services 
Recruitment and placement 
 

 

 

77 of 134



  
Page 2 

 
  

Anticipated costs 

Most agencies have a fee of 30-35% of a candidates first year’s compensation and bonus 
payments in addition to all related expenses.  Following is an estimation of the cost for the 
recruitment: 

Base recruitment fee:  $120,000 (Assuming $300,000 base plus 15% IC eligibility) 

Travel/other expenses: $  30,000 

Relocation expenses:  $  15,000   

Temporary housing:  $  20,000 

Estimate:   $195,000 

78 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 1 of 8 

 

Tahoe Forest Health System 

Title:  Guidelines For The Conduct 
Of Business By The Tahoe Forest 
Hospital District Board of Directors 

Policy/Procedure #:  ABD-12 

Responsible Department:  Board of Directors 

Type of policy Original Date: Reviewed Dates: Revision Dates:  

       

 Board 8/90 3/08: 1/12; 1/14  1/10, 6/14 

 Medical Staff    

 Departmental    

Applies to:    System    Tahoe Forest Hospital    Incline Village Community Hospital 

PURPOSE:  

To explain the guidelines for the Board of Directors in conducting business for the District. 

To clarify the requirements of state law for public meetings while conducting business and 
meetings on behalf of the District. 

POLICY: 

In an effort to make known to any interested party the general guidelines for the conduct of 
business by the Board of Directors of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District, the following 
compendium of provisions from the Tahoe Forest Hospital District Bylaws and the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, hereinafter referred to as Brown Act, is hereby established. 

PROCEDURE: 
1.0 Officers Of The Board of Directors 

1.1 The officers of the Board of Directors are:  President, Vice President, Secretary 
and Treasurer.  

1.2 The officers shall be chosen every year by the Board of Directors at the first 
meeting of such calendar year and each officer shall hold office for a one year 
term or until such officer's successor shall be elected and qualified or until such 
officer is otherwise disqualified to serve.  The person holding the office of 
President of the Board of Directors shall not serve two successive terms.  The 
office of President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer shall be filled by 
members of the Board of Directors.  The office of Clerk shall be filled by the Chief 
Executive Officer. 

2.0 Meetings Of The Board of Directors 

2.1 Regular Meetings:   Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held the 
last Tuesday of each month at 6:00 PM at a location within the Hospital District 
Boundaries.  The regular meeting shall begin with Open Session business in 
accordance with California Open Meeting Laws.  Regular meetings will adjourn 
by 10:00 PM unless extended by a majority vote of Board Members present.  The 

79 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 2 of 8 

notice for meetings of the Board of Directors and Board Committees shall be 
posted per the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

2.2 It is the duty, obligation, and responsibility of the Board President and Board 
Committee chairpersons to call for Board of Directors and Board Committee 
meetings and meeting locations.  This authority is vested within the office of the 
Board President or the Board Committee chair and is expected to be used with 
the best interests of the District, Directors, staff and communities we serve. 

2.3 Special Meetings:   Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held from 
time to time as specified in the District Bylaws and with the required 24 hours 
notice as stated in the Brown Act.  

2.3.1 If there is a determination by the President of the Board, or by two-thirds 
of the Board,  that there is a need to take immediate action upon an 
item(s) requiring Board approval, and the need for action comes prior to a 
regular meeting, then a special meeting shall be called and conducted in 
accordance with the notice and posting provisions of the Brown Act in 
order to obtain Board approval. 

2.3.2 Special meetings shall be called by delivering written notice to each 
Board member and to the public in compliance with the Brown Act (to 
each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station 
requesting notice in writing), including providing a description of the 
business to be transacted.  Board members may dispense with the 
written notice provision if a written waiver of notice has been filed with the 
Clerk prior to the time a meeting convenes.  

2.3.3 No business other than the purpose for which the special meeting was 
called shall be considered, discussed, or transacted at the meeting. 

2.4 Emergency Meetings:  Emergency meetings may be called in the event of an 
emergency situation, defined as a crippling disaster, work stoppage or other 
activity which severely impairs public health, safety or both, as determined by a 
majority of the Board, or in the event of a dire emergency, defined as a crippling 
disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or threatened terrorist activity so 
immediate and significant that requiring one hour notice before holding an 
emergency meeting may endanger the public health, safety, or both as 
determined by a majority of the board.   

2.4.1 In the case of an emergency situation involving matters upon which 
prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption 
of public facilities, then a one (1) hour notice provision as prescribed by 
the Brown Act is required.  In the event telephone services are not 
working, notice must be given as soon as possible after the meeting. 

2.4.2 No business other than the purpose for which the emergency meeting 
was called shall be considered, discussed, or transacted at the meeting. 

2.5 Closed Session Meetings:   Closed Session meetings of the Board of Directors 
and Board committees may be held as deemed necessary by members of the 
Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to the required notice 
and the restriction of subject matter as defined in Government Code Section 
54950 (Brown Act). Under no circumstances shall the Board of Directors order a 
closed session meeting for the purposes of discussing or deliberating, or to  

80 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 3 of 8 

permit the discussion or deliberation in any closed meeting of any proposals 
regarding: 

2.5.1 The sale, conversion, contract for management, or leasing of any District 
health care facility or the assets thereof, to any for-profit or nonprofit 
entity, agency, association, organization, governmental body, person, 
partnership, corporation, or other district. 

2.5.2 The conversion of any District health care facility to any other form of 
ownership by the District. 

2.5.3 The dissolution of the District. 

2.6 Teleconferencing: Any regular, special, or emergency meeting at which 
teleconferencing is utilized shall be conducted in compliance with the provisions 
of the Brown Act.  These include: 

2.6.1 Teleconferences must comply with the rest of the Brown Act 

2.6.2 All votes taken by teleconference must be taken by roll call 

2.6.3 Agendas must be posted at all teleconference locations 

2.6.4 Each teleconference location must be identified in the agenda 

2.6.5 Each teleconference location must be accessible to the public 

2.6.6 At least a quorum of the Board must participate from locations within the 
District boundaries (a Board member outside the geographical location of 
the District may be counted toward the quorum if fifty percent (50%) of the 
number of members that would establish the quorum is present within the 
geographical boundaries) 

2.6.7 The agenda must provide for public comment at each teleconference 
location. 

2.7 All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be chaired by members of the Board 
of Directors in the following order:  President, Vice President or Secretary.  

3.0 Activities/Meetings of Board Committees 

3.1 Board committees will undertake the activities of the committee as outlined in the 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District Bylaws.  In addition, each standing committee will 
annually establish committee goals, and such goals will be presented to the 
Board of Directors.   

3.2 In order that Board standing committees function in the most efficient manner, 
the length of committee meetings will be kept to a reasonable length.  Further, 
the most critical topics will be placed at the beginning of committee agendas to 
ensure their review in a timely manner. 

4.0 Meetings Open to the Public 

All meetings of the Board of Directors and Board standing committees are open to the 
public with the exception of the Closed Session portion of such meetings. 

 

 

81 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 4 of 8 

5.0 Notices of Meetings of the Board of Directors and Board Standing Committees Supplied 
to the Public 

Notices of any Regular or Special meeting of the Board of Directors and Board standing 
committees shall be mailed to any interested party who has filed a written request for 
such notice.  The request must be renewed annually in writing.   

6.0 Board and Board Standing Committee Agenda Packets for Members of the Public 

6.1 Board and Board standing committee agendas and agenda materials are 
available for review by any interested party at the administrative offices or at the 
Board or Board standing committee meeting itself.   

6.2 Any requests from the public for Board and Board standing committee agenda 
packets shall be filled within a reasonable amount of time.  Any member of the 
public requesting a Board or Board standing committee agenda packet with all 
attachments shall be charged $.10 per page for such material.  The charge is 
only intended to capture direct costs associated with complying with public 
requests for documents.  In no way do we attempt to profit from this activity; but 
only seek to remain fiscally prudent and provide equity of service while 
maintaining easy access.  Additionally, any members of the public being able to 
demonstrate true indigence shall be exempted from the fee per page charges.  
An agenda packet with all attachments shall be made available for use by any 
interested party at all Regular and Special meetings of the Board of Directors and 
Board standing committee meetings.   

7.0 Public Input at Meetings of the Board of Directors and Board Standing Committee 
Meetings 

On each agenda of Regular and Special meetings of the Board of Directors and Board 
standing  committee meetings there shall be a provision made for input from the 
audience.  The Board of Directors or Board standing committee may impose a time limit 
for such public input.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, items which have not previously been 
posted on the meeting agenda may not be discussed or acted upon at that meeting by 
the Board of Directors with the following exceptions: 

7.1 If a majority of the Board of Directors determines that an emergency situation 
exists as defined under the "Emergency Meetings" section of this policy, or 

7.2 If two-thirds of the Board of Directors' full membership is present and agree an 
item needs to be placed on the agenda for action after the agenda was posted, 
or 

7.3 If the item was previously posted in connection with a meeting which occurred no 
more than 5 days prior to the date on which the proposed action will be taken. 

8.0 Preparation Of The Agenda For Board or Board Standing Committee Meetings 

8.1 Placing of Items On The Agenda By Members Of The Public: 

8.1.1 As provided for in Government Code Sections 54950-54962 (Brown Act) 
pertaining to public input, the District will provide an opportunity for 
members of the public to address the Board on any matter within their 
subject matter jurisdiction.  It is the desire of the Board of Directors to 
adhere to legislative requirements and conduct the business of the 
District in a manner so as to address the needs and concerns of 
members of the public. 

82 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 5 of 8 

8.1.2 Members of the public are directed to contact the President of the Board 
of Directors, a Director of the Board or the Chief Executive Officer at least 
two weeks prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors at which they 
wish to have an items placed on the agenda for discussion/action.  
Requests to Directors of the Board will be referred to the Chief Executive 
Officer for follow up. 

8.2 The Chief Executive Officer and Executive Assistant, with input from members of 
the Board, shall prepare the agendas for the meetings of the Board of Directors 
or Board standing committees.  Items to be placed on the Board agenda should 
be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer or the Executive Assistant no later 
than 10 days prior to the Board meeting. 

8.3 The format for agendas of meetings of the Board of Directors will be as follows: 

8.3.1 6:00 PM Call to Order 

8.3.2 Roll Call 

8.3.3 Clear the Agenda/ Items Not on the Posted Agenda 

8.3.4 Input – Audience 

8.3.5 Medical Staff Report 

8.3.6 Consent Calendar 

8.3.7 Chief Executive Officer’s Report 

8.3.8 Additional Administrative Reports 

8.3.9 Presentations/ Staff Reports 

8.3.10 Board Committee Reports/Recommendations 

8.3.11 Items for Board Discussion And/Or Action 

8.3.12 Agenda Input For Upcoming Committee Meetings 

8.3.13 Items for Next Meeting 

8.3.14 Board Members Reports/Closing Remarks 

8.3.15 Closed Session if necessary 

8.4 The Board of Directors to facilitate input from members of the Medical Staff.  
When possible, items of concern to the members of the Medical Staff will be 
placed as early in the agenda as appropriate within the format as detailed above. 

8.5 The Board President and the Chief Executive Officer will create a "Consent 
Calendar" for those items on the agenda which are reasonably expected to be 
routine and non-controversial.  The Board of Directors shall consider all of the 
items on the agenda marked Consent Calendar at one time by vote after a 
motion has been duly made and seconded.  If any member of the Board of 
Directors, hospital staff or any interested person in the audience requests that a 
consent item be removed from the list of consent items prior to the vote on the 
Consent Calendar, such item shall be taken up for consideration and disposition 
following action on the remaining items on the Consent Calendar. 

8.6 If available, minutes of Board standing committee meetings will be included in 
Board agenda packets.  If not available, the agenda for the meeting will be 

83 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 6 of 8 

included.  Recommendations from the Board standing committee to the Board of 
Directors will be highlighted at the beginning of the minutes for ease of 
presentation. 

8.7 The President of the Board of Directors will approve the finalized agenda prior to 
its distribution. 

9.0 Notification by Board Member of Anticipated Absences 

In the event a Board Member will be out of the area or unable to participate in a meeting, 
the Board Member is requested to provide notification to the Executive Assistant with 
information including the dates of absence, best method of contact, applicable telephone 
and fax numbers, and, if possible, a mailing address.  If you do not wish to be contacted 
in the event of an emergency, you must waive your right to be contacted in writing.  

10.0 Minutes Of Meetings Of The Board Of Directors And Board Standing Committees 

Minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors and Board standing committees shall be 
taken by the Executive Assistant.  The minutes shall be transcribed by the Executive 
Assistant and reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer prior to submittal to the Board of 
Directors or Board committees for review and approval at their next regularly scheduled 
meeting. 

11.0 Special Rules/Robert's Rules Of Order 

Introduction:  The Board of Directors has adopted Robert's Rules Of Order, Revised as 
the framework to guide discussion and actions within the Board of Directors' meetings 
and its subsidiary committee structure.  With acknowledgement that the Tahoe Forest 
Hospital Board of Directors is somewhat different in form, membership and objective 
than is captured in Robert's Rules, the placement of "Special Rules" is appropriate to 
facilitate superior deliberation and decision making.  With Robert's Rules providing the 
basis for debate and action, the following procedures and/or expectations shall take 
precedence over Robert's Rules of Order, Revised: 

12.0 Discussion/Debate 

12.1 As is practical, staff oral summaries shall precede motions. 

12.2 Invited outside presenters, such as our auditors, accountants, legal counsel shall 
offer their comments and documentation prior to a motion being introduced by 
one of the Board Members. 

12.3 Brief questions to fill in knowledge gaps or to provide clarification should be 
posed prior to motion language being introduced. 

12.4 Any Board committee input or recommendations should be presented prior to a 
motion.  Again, brief questioning for clarification may be engaged in prior to 
motions. 

12.5 Public input/comments regarding items not on the agenda will be sought at the 
beginning of Board/Board standing committee meetings.  Public input/comments 
regarding agendized items will be sought during the consideration of these items, 
before action is taken, at Board/Board standing committee meetings. It is noted 
that presentations from outside organizations may be referred to a Board 
Committee by the Board President for the formulation of a recommendation to 
the Board of Directors. 

84 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 7 of 8 

12.6 At any point during a Board of Directors meeting any member may request, by 
motion that the Board go into "Committee of the Whole" to discuss any item on 
the agenda.  Structurally, a motion is made to "go into Committee of the Whole to 
discuss item “x”, a second is received, and a vote is taken.  Simple majority rules 
on the matter.  Such discussions are intended to act as an opportunity to present 
opinions and a fact, and/or receive input from other Board members in the 
absence of an "action" motion directly under consideration.  To leave "Committee 
of the Whole" discussions and return to the agenda, or to present a motion for 
action, the Chair can pose that we have exhausted the topic, and by consent 
adjourn the Committee of the Whole and return to the Board agenda.   

12.7 Or, if any member wishes to close the Committee of the Whole discussion, 
he/she can ask for such action, by motion, and receiving a second the request to 
move on will be voted upon.  Again, simple majority rules on the matter. 

12.8 A separate and distinct area of the agenda shall be devoted to discussion items.  
This section is intended to serve the function of allowing the Directorship an 
opportunity to engage in free flowing information and opinion exchanges without 
the necessity of relating one's thoughts to a pending action item or motion.  
When the Chair calls for this section of the meeting, we are in de-facto 
“Committee Of The Whole" discussion.  Topics such as emerging trends, long 
range plans, events and the like are most appropriately considered within this 
format.  On each Board agenda there will be, under this section, an "agendized" 
item asking for member input for future topics. 

12.9 A member can ask that a topic be placed on next month's agenda for discussion.  
The item will be placed on next month’s agenda unless another Board Member 
objects, in which case the simple majority rules. 

13.0 Voting/Motions 

13.1 Any member of the Board of Directors may introduce or second a motion, 
including the Board President or other currently presiding officer.  All members, 
including the Board President, are obliged to vote on all motions presented while 
in attendance.   

13.2 Recording of the vote shall be first done by voice vote, with exception going to 
resolutions that require a roll call vote.  Any member may request a roll call vote 
on any motion; such requests will not require a second and shall be performed at 
once. 

13.3 "Secret ballots" or any other means of casting anonymous or confidential votes 
are strictly prohibited per law.  All votes shall be recorded and be available for 
public review.  

13.4 Unless otherwise noted, all Board related business, whether in committee or 
Board session (open or closed) shall be conducted in a fashion conversant with 
Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.  The Board formally adopts this method of 
conducting business to ensure that all Board affairs are conducted in an 
equitable, orderly and timely fashion.  Parliamentary procedures are seen as a 
valuable tool for proper conduct in meetings, and should provide a degree of 
standardization in regards to other governmental interests, facilitating the public's 
understanding (and other governmental bodies' understanding) our actions. 

 

85 of 134



 

ABD-12 Guidelines forthe Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of DirectorsABD-12  Guidelines 
for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors 

Page 8 of 8 

14.0 Urgent Decisions  

In the event that an urgent or emergent decision or action is required by the Board prior 
to a regularly scheduled meeting, the President of the Board, or a majority of the Board 
members, may call a special board meeting or an emergency meeting to take action. 

15.0 Contingent Approval 

15.1 In the event the Board approves an item at a Board meeting in which all of the 
terms, conditions, restrictions, commitments, etc. are clearly defined, but which 
such provisions have not been formalized in contracts or other appropriate 
documentation, the Board may give preliminary approval to the Chief Executive 
Officer to execute the contract or other appropriate documentation, contingent 
upon the following:  

15.1.1 the terms are not substantively altered from those previously approved,  

15.1.2 all involved parties to the transaction or agreement are notified in writing 
of the contingent approval of the terms pending ratification by the Board, 
and 

15.1.3 the final terms and documentation are approved or rejected by the Board 
at its next regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

15.2 If the terms of the supporting documentation are substantively different than 
those previously approved at the public meeting, then approval must be obtained 
at the next regular board meeting, or a special meeting may be called. 

Related Policies/Forms: Inspection And Copying of Public Records ABD-14 
References:  Ralph M. Brown Act (CA Govt Code §54950), Governance Institute 
Policy Owner:   Clerk of the Board 
Approved by:  Robert Schapper, Chief Executive Officer 
 

86 of 134

http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/InspectionAndCopyingofPublicRecords.doc


 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 1 of 16 

 

Tahoe Forest Health System 

Title: Manner of Governance For 

The Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

Board of Directors 

Policy/Procedure #:  ABD-17 

Responsible Department: Board of Directors 

Type of policy Original Date: Reviewed Dates: Revision Dates:  

        

 Board 11/94 1/12; 1/14 3/08;1/10; 4/14 

 Medical Staff    

 Departmental    

Applies to:    System    Tahoe Forest Hospital    Incline Village Community Hospital 

PURPOSE:  

To provide the framework within which the members of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest 
Hospital District will be guided in the execution of their fiduciary duties on behalf of the District. 

To help assure awareness by the members of the Board of Directors of their basic fiduciary 
duties under state law, and that the actions, decisions and conduct of the members of the Board 
of Directors of the District are at all times consistent with their duties and obligations. 

To assist the Board of Directors in the Board’s exercise of oversight, by establishing 
confidentiality obligations of Board Members to protect and preserve the confidentiality of 
District information. 

To create an environment of open and honest communication, mutual respect and clearly 
defined responsibilities among Board Members, administration, all employees, physicians, 
affiliates, customers and the community we serve. 

To incorporate into the governance process the tenets of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District’s 
Mission Statement: 

Devoted to Excellence 

Your Health 

Your Life 

Our Passion 

To incorporate into the governance process the tenets of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District’s 
Vision Statement: 

To be the Best Mountain 

Community Health System 

in the Nation 

 

87 of 134



 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 2 of 16 

POLICY: 

Members of the Board shall act in accordance with the highest standards of personal integrity, 
avoiding any conflict of interest, all the while maintaining the letter, as well as the spirit, of 
California’s Open Meeting Law, with due deference to information of a privileged or confidential 
nature. 

PROCEDURE: 
1.0 General Principals of Governance: 

1.1 The Directors’ Role. The Directors are those persons responsible for the 
operation of the District; all District authority and affairs are to be managed by or 
under the direction of the Board of Directors. The Directors do not manage the 
day-to-day affairs of the District, but must exercise reasonable and prudent 
oversight with respect to District Chiefs, agents, and employees. In the 
performance of its duties, members of the Board of Directors may act in reliance 
on information and reports received from senior management as well as 
professional advisors and consultants whom the Board of Directors regard as 
reliable and competent with respect to the subject matter at issue. 

1.2 Governance Commitment. The Board of Directors, on behalf of the 
beneficiaries of the mission of the District, will govern the District with a strategic 
perspective through a continuously improving commitment to the vision and 
values set forth in that mission. 

1.3 Core Fiduciary Duties. The Board of Directors will effect its prescribed role and 
commitment in a manner consistent with all relevant law, and with the following 
core fiduciary duties: 

1.3.1 Duty of Care. Each Director is obligated to exercise the proper level of 
care in the decision-making process, by acting (a) in “good faith” (i.e., in 
the absence of any personal benefit or self-dealing); (b) with that level of 
care that an ordinary prudent person would exercise in like circumstances 
(e.g., the obligations to be informed and to exercise reasonable inquiry); 
and (c) in a manner the Director reasonably believes is in the best 
interests of the District. 

1.3.2 Duty of Loyalty. Each Director is obligated to exercise his/her obligations 
and powers in the best interests of the District and its mission, not in 
his/her own interest or in the interest of another entity or person. Each 
Director is obligated to affirmatively protect the interests of the District 
committed to his/her charge, and to refrain from doing anything that would 
work injury to the District, or to deprive it of profit or advantage which the 
Director’s skill or ability might bring to it, or enable it to make in the 
reasonable and lawful exercise of its powers. Each Director is obligated to 
exercise an undivided and unselfish loyalty to the District and in doing so 
not to allow any conflict between duty and self-interest. 

1.3.3 Duty of Obedience. Each Director is charged with the obligation to 
further the mission of the District as set forth in its Bylaws, to be faithful to 
its articulated purposes and goals, and to act in conformity with all laws 
affecting the District. 

2.0 Governing Style, Focus.  The Board will govern with an emphasis on outward vision 
rather than internal preoccupation; encouragement to express diversity in viewpoints; 

88 of 134



 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 3 of 16 

and a proactive style.  The Board will exercise its governance obligations in a manner 
that emphasizes candor; transparency; fairness; good citizenship; a commitment to 
compliance; and dedication to the mission of the District. In so doing, the Board of 
Directors shall foster a governance culture stressing constructive scrutiny and an active, 
independent oversight role. 
2.1 The Board, with educated leadership, shall direct and inspire the organization 

through careful establishment of broadly written policies.  The Board’s major 
policy focus will be on the intended long-term impacts of policy decisions on the 
organization, not on the administrative functions.  Policies will be statements of 
organizational values incorporating the Five Foundations of Excellence: 

Quality – Provide excellence in clinical outcomes 

Service – Best place to be cared for 

People – Best place to work and practice  

Finance –- Provide superior financial performance 

Growth – Meet the needs of the community 

2.2 The Board will enforce upon itself whatever discipline is needed to govern with 
excellence.  Self-discipline will apply to matters such as attendance, preparation 
for meetings, respect of individual and organizational roles, and ensuring 
continuance of governance capability.  Any hospital employee, physician, 
affiliate, customer or community member may approach the Chief Executive 
Officer or President of the Board to express concerns related to an individual 
Board Member’s conduct as it relates to this policy without fear of reprisal. 

3.0 Board of Directors’ Duties. In addition to the core duties set forth above, and in 
accordance with standards of California State law applicable to the Directors of a public 
agency, including districts, the Directors collectively shall perform and fulfill the following 
acts and duties in view of the manner in which persons of ordinary prudence, diligence, 
discretion, and judgment would act in the management of their own affairs. The Directors 
shall: 

3.1 Oversee the implementation of the District’s policies and procedures and take all 
steps necessary to ensure that the District is being managed in a manner 
consistent with its mission, that its assets are being managed prudently and only 
for the District’s stated purpose, and that those policies are administered so as to 
provide quality health care in a safe environment. .  

3.2 Establish, review, and monitor the implementation of substantive strategic 
policies affecting the administration of the District such as its healthcare and 
financial objectives and other major plans and actions. 

3.3 Oversee and monitor the management of the District’s finances as described in 
the Bylaws, periodically reviewing financial projections, establishing and 
implementing fiscal controls, and .evaluating the performance of the District and 
the degree of achievement of Board-approved objectives and plans. Particular 
oversight shall be made with respect to the integrity and clarity of the District’s 
financial statements and financial reporting. 

3.4 Acting as prudent fiduciaries of an institution requiring a professional and 
managerial expertise, exercise reasonable care, skill, and caution in selecting the 
CEO; and in accordance with the Bylaws, establishing, the scope and terms of 

89 of 134



 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 4 of 16 

CEO’s duties; periodically reviewing CEO’s actions in order to monitor his/her 
performance and compliance with board directives, and fix the compensation of, 
and where appropriate, hire or replace the CEO,.  

3.5 Review and approve significant District actions. 

3.6 Advise management on significant financial, operational, and mission-based 
issues facing the District. 

3.7 Set limits on the means with which the CEO and District staff operate by 
establishing principles of prudence and ethics, forming the parameters for all 
management and staff practices, activities, circumstances, and methods. 

3.8 Monitor Board directives to the CEO and professional consultants retained by the 
Board to ensure implementation in accordance with such directives. 

3.9 Hold the CEO and senior leadership team accountable for ensuring compliance 
with applicable federal and state laws and regulations and court orders regarding 
the administration of the District, and for minimizing exposure to legal action. 

3.10 Uphold and act in accordance with the provisions of the California Health and 
Safety Code §§32000 et seq, (the “Local Health Care District Law), upon which 
the District was established, with Government Code §§54950 et seq. (the “Ralph 
M. Brown Act”) regarding open meetings, and with any and all other laws and 
regulations relating thereto. 

3.11 The Directors will not have day-to-day responsibility for the management of the 
District. 

3.12 Chairperson’s Role. The Chairperson will be selected by the Board of Directors 
by majority vote. The Chairperson’s primary role is the integrity of the Board’s 
process and, secondarily, occasional representation of the Board to outside 
parties. The Chairperson is generally the Director authorized to speak for the 
Board (beyond simply reporting Board decisions). The job of the Chairperson is 
to ensure the Board behaves consistently with its own policies and rules. 

4.0 Board Composition, Commitment. 
4.1 Structure.  The size, election, term and vacancy guidelines for the Board of 

Directors is defined in the Bylaws, and as prescribed by The Local Health Care 
District Law (CA Health & Safety Code Section 32100) and Vacancies of Public 
Officers (CA Govt Code Section 1780). 

4.2 Officers.  The officers of the District are members of the Board and are chosen 
as defined in the Bylaws.  An officer may resign at any time or be removed by the 
majority vote of the other Directors then in office at any regular or special 
meeting of the Board of Directors. Reason for action shall be given to the Board 
members ten (10) days prior to that action.  

4.3 Director Removal.   
4.3.1 A Board member may be removed by recall vote as set forth in CA 

Elections Code Section 2700, or as provided in The Local Health Care 
District Law (CA Health & Safety Code Section 32100.2) regarding 
meeting absences (See Section 4.4.2 below). 

4.3.2 In accordance with CA Govt Code Sections 3000-3001, a Director forfeits 
his/her office upon conviction of designated crimes as specified in the 

90 of 134



 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 5 of 16 

Constitution and laws of the State.  Additionally, a Director  intoxicated 
while discharging the duties of his/her office, or by reason of intoxication 
is disqualified from discharging or neglects his/her duties, is guilty of a 
misdemeanor.  On conviction of such misdemeanor the Director forfeits 
his/her office, and the vacancy shall be filled in the same manner as if the 
Director had filed a resignation. 

4.3.3 An accusation in writing against a Director for willful or corrupt misconduct 
in office, may be presented by the grand jury of the county in which the  
accused Director is selected or appointed.  Prior to removal, the Director 
shall be entitled to due process in accordance with the provisions of CA 
Govt Sections 3060-3075.  Removal shall occur only upon a conviction 
and court pronounced judgment.  A Director may be removed from office 
for willful or corrupt misconduct in office occurring at any time within the 
six years immediately preceding the presentation of an accusation by the 
grand jury. 

4.4 Expectations of Commitment.  
4.4.1 Directors of the District shall be expected to expend such amounts of time 

and energy in support of the oversight of the District’s affairs as may be 
necessary for them to fully satisfy their fiduciary obligations as set forth 
above. Directors shall be entitled to maintain outside business and 
volunteer activities in a manner consistent with the District’s policies on 
conflicts of interest and outside business opportunities.  

4.4.2 Directors shall adhere to board and/or committee meeting attendance 
requirements.  In accordance with The Local Health Care District Law, the 
term of any Director shall expire if he or she is absent from three 
consecutive regular meetings, or from three of any five consecutive 
meetings of the Board and the Board by resolution declares that a 
vacancy exists on the Board.   

4.4.3 In the event a Board Member will be out of the area or unable to 
participate in a meeting, the Board Member is requested to provide 
notification to the Executive Assistant as described in the Guidelines For 
the Conduct of Business By the TFHD Board of Directors. 

4.5 Director Orientation and Continuing Education. Refer to Orientation and 
Continuing Education . 

4.6 Self-Evaluation.  Refer to Board, Chief Executive Officer, & Employee 
Performance Evaluation. 

4.7 Compensation.  Refer to Board Compensation and Reimbursement Policy. 

5.0 Committee Principles. Notwithstanding the basic obligations of the Directors as set 
forth in this Policy, it is an appropriate exercise of the Board’s fiduciary duty to delegate 
responsibility for certain matters to committees designated by the Board of Directors for 
such purposes.   

5.1 The Bylaws define and establish the Standing Committees, including 
composition, appointment term, and purpose, as well as the procedure for 
establishing Special Committees, formed to perform a specific or limited function.   

5.2 A committee is a Board committee only if its existence and charge come from the 
Board, regardless of whether Directors sit on the committee. The only Board 

91 of 134

http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/OrientationAndContinuingEducation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/OrientationAndContinuingEducation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/OrientationAndContinuingEducation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/BoardCEOAndEmployeePerformanceEvaluation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/BoardCEOAndEmployeePerformanceEvaluation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/BoardCompensationandReimbursement.doc


 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 6 of 16 

committees are those which are set forth in the bylaws of the District or as 
appointed by the President of the Board. 

5.3 Board committees are to assist the Board of Directors in the performance of its 
duties, not to help the staff perform its duties. Committees ordinarily will assist 
the Board by preparing policy alternatives and implications for Board deliberation. 
Board committees are not to be created by the Board to advise staff. 

5.4 Board committees may not speak or act for the Board except when formally 
given such authority for specific and time-limited purposes. Expectations and 
authority will be carefully stated in order not to conflict with authority delegated to 
the CEO. 

5.5 Board committees cannot exercise authority over staff. Because the CEO works 
for the full Board, he or she will not be required to obtain approval of a Board 
committee before taking an executive action. In keeping with the Board’s broader 
focus, Board committees will not normally have direct dealings with current staff 
operations although Board committees may include staff members. 

6.0 Board Operations. 
6.1 Refer to Guidelines for the Conduct of Business by the TFHD Board of 

Directors. 
6.2 Agenda for Board Meetings. It shall be the responsibility of the Chairman of the 

Board of Directors to set forth and distribute (and, to the extent practical, in 
advance) the agenda established for each meeting of the Board of Directors. The 
agenda shall set forth with sufficient clarity the topics and issues to be addressed 
at the meeting, those non-board members who will be in attendance, and specific 
action which may be requested to be taken by the Board of Directors.  

6.3 Board Materials. It shall be the responsibility of senior executive management of 
the District to assure distribution of all materials, information, and data relevant 
for consideration by the Board of Directors at its next meeting, with sufficient 
advance notice and with a degree of clarity as to enable each Director to be 
informed with respect to all items scheduled to come before the Board. In the 
event that a meeting of the Board of Directors is called in exigent circumstances 
(e.g., a special meeting), such as to preclude advance distribution, the President 
of the Board of Directors shall allot such time as necessary during the course of 
the meeting to the review and discuss all materials, information, and data. 

6.4 Disclose Matters. Members of the Board of Directors shall recognize and fulfill 
an obligation to disclose to the Board of Directors information and analysis of 
which they become aware which relates to the decision- making and oversight 
functions of the Board. Similarly, members of the senior executive management 
of the District shall also recognize and fulfill an obligation to disclose, to a 
supervising officer, the general counsel or to the Board of Directors or Committee 
thereof, information and analysis relevant to the decision making and oversight 
functions of the Board. 

6.5 Media.  Board Members will maintain positive media and public relations through 
professional responses with all contacts, the following procedure will be followed 
in Board Member communications with the public and media: 

6.5.1 When a member of the Board of Directors is addressing any audience, 
either through community involvement or media contact, it is essential 

92 of 134

http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc


 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 7 of 16 

that the Board Member clarify whether they are speaking as an individual 
or a spokesperson for the entire Board of Directors. 

6.5.2 Any media/community interaction addressed to the Board of Directors as 
a whole should be directed to the President of the Board of Directors or 
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Marketing/Media Relations. 

6.5.3 If a member of the media approaches an individual member of the Board 
of Directors they are free to interact with the media, but the media contact 
also should be referred to the President of the Board of Directors or Chief 
Executive Officer and Director of Marketing/Media Relations.  The Chief 
Executive Officer or their designee can address the media in reference to 
standing policies of the Board of Directors. 

6.5.4 As a courtesy, the Chief Executive Officer or their designee in the Chief 
Executive Officer’s absence, should be informed by Board Members of 
contact from, or discussion with, the media or members of the community 
on District issues. 

6.5.5 All proactive media contact should be reviewed with the Chief Executive 
Officer and Director of Marketing/Media Relations prior to contact with the 
media. 

7.0 Board Powers and Authority  The powers and authority of the Board are as defined in 
the Bylaws and the Local Health Care District Law (CA Health and Safety Code Sections 
32121-32137) 

8.0 Delegation To The Chief Executive Officer:   
8.1 The Board delegates professional and administrative responsibility to the Chief 

Executive Officer for overall management of the organization, its licensed 
facilities, and its personnel.  The Board will instruct the Chief Executive Officer 
through written policies which prescribe the organizational goals to be achieved, 
and describe organizational situations and actions to be avoided, allowing the 
Chief Executive Officer to use any reasonable interpretation of these policies.  

8.1.1 The Board will develop policies instructing the Chief Executive Officer to 
achieve certain results.  These policies will be developed systematically 
from the broadest, most general level, to more defined levels. 

8.1.2 As long as the Chief Executive Officer uses a reasonable interpretation of 
the Board’s policies, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to establish 
organizational policies, make decisions, take actions, establish practices 
and develop activities. 

8.1.3 The Chief Executive Officer shall be administrator responsible to fulfill 
State licensing and certification disclosure and reporting obligations for 
changes in dissolution and ownership, management, and medical staff 
leadership.  (See Appendix A) 

8.1.4 The Board may review and change the boundary between Board and 
Chief Executive Officer domains; and by doing so the Board changes the 
latitude of choice given to the Chief Executive Officer.  But, as long as a 
particular delegation is in place, the Board will respect and support the 
Chief Executive Officer’s choices. 

93 of 134



 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 8 of 16 

8.2 To ensure that the Board’s vision and goals are being carried out, and to identify 
discrepancies between policy and implementation, the Board will be provided all 
appropriate information by staff to assure adequate implementation of Board 
policies and strategic plans.  Such information can be utilized to promote the 
distinction between Board and staff roles.  Simply, the Board expects full 
information, from which it develops policies, and based upon which staff will carry 
out the goals and policies of the Board. 

9.0 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permissible under California law, the District shall 
indemnify and provide a defense to its current and former Board members with respect 
to any civil action or proceeding brought against him or her on account of an act or 
omission in the scope of employment or other duties with the District, provided that the 
District need not provide a defense when it determines that the member  acted or failed 
to act because of actual fraud or corruption. 

10.0 Confidentiality.  District information includes, but is not limited to, protected health 
information, proprietary, trade secret, personal, privileged, or otherwise sensitive data 
and information (collectively “Confidential Information”). 

10.1 Board Members shall be given access to Confidential Information for District 
purposes only and may not use or disclose Confidential Information for any 
purpose other than to conduct the business of the District in a manner consistent 
with its mission and corporate compliance plan. 

10.2 Board Members shall be responsible for maintaining privacy of health information 
as specified in the privacy provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), and any subsequent statutes, regulations, 
and amendments thereto. 

10.3 Board Members shall not disclose, share, copy, or transmit Confidential 
Information to those not authorized to receive it. 

10.4 At all times, Board Members shall protect the integrity, security, and 
confidentiality of Confidential Information which they may have access to or 
come into contact with which could be used in any reasonable way to negatively 
impact the District, its reputation, strategic position, or operations. 

10.5 Information shall not be considered Confidential Information if it:  

10.5.1 is publicly known other than through acts or omissions attributable to the 
disclosing party;  

10.5.2 as demonstrated by prior written records, is already known to the 
disclosing party at the time of the disclosure;  

10.5.3 is disclosed in good faith to a recipient party by a third party having a 
lawful right to do so;  

10.5.4 is subject of written consent to the District authorizing disclosure; or  

10.5.5 was independently developed by the disclosing party without reference to 
the District’s Confidential Information. 

10.6 Any action by a Board Member in violation of this policy may subject such 
individual to criminal and civil liability 

10.7 Board Members should be referred to Legal Counsel of the District for any 
questions they may have with respect to the application of this Policy in general 

94 of 134



 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 9 of 16 

or whether a particular item is Confidential Information. 

10.8 Each Board Member shall sign a Pledge of Confidentiality (Appendix B) as 
acknowledgement and confirmation of the obligations contained herein. 

 

Related Policies/Forms: Guidelines For the Conduct of Business By the TFHD Board of 
Directors ABD-12; Board, Chief Executive Officer, & Employee Performance Evaluation ABD-
01; Board Compensation and Reimbursement ABD-03; Orientation and Continuing Education 
ABD-19  
References: Governance Institute;  
42 CFR 485.627 - Condition of Participation: Organizational Structure 
Local Health Care District Law (CA Health and Safety Code §§32121-32137); Ralph M. Brown 
Act (CA Govt Code §§54950 et  seq): Resignations and Vacancies (CA Govt Code §§1750-
1782); Removal From Office (CA Government §§3000-3075); Uniform District Election Law 
(CA Elections Code §§10500-10556); Recall of Local Officers (CA Elections Code §§11200-
11227); Liability of Public Employees (CA Govt Code §§820-825.6) 
Cal. Code. Regs. Title 22 Division 5 §70125; §70127; NRS 449.001Nevada Administrative Code 
(NAC) Chapter 449.0114 
Policy Owner:  Michelle Cook, Clerk of the Board 
Approved by: Robert Schapper, Chief Executive Officer  
 

95 of 134

http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/GuidelinesFortheConductofBusinessByTFHDBoardofDirectors.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/BoardCEOAndEmployeePerformanceEvaluation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/BoardCEOAndEmployeePerformanceEvaluation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/BoardCompensationandReimbursement.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/OrientationAndContinuingEducation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/OrientationAndContinuingEducation.doc
http://sharepoint.tfhd.ad/sites/pnp/PnPlibrary/OrientationAndContinuingEducation.doc
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=6054ac27b4cabc040a382701f0b60d3f&node=42:5.0.1.1.4.2.7.4&rgn=div8
http://weblinks.westlaw.com/toc/default.aspx?Abbr=ca%2Dadc&Action=CollapseTree&AP=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&ItemKey=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&RP=%2Ftoc%2Fdefault%2Ewl&Service=TOC&RS=WEBL14.01&VR=2.0&SPa=CCR-1000&pbc=DA010192&fragment#ID7365
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/nac/nac-449.html#NAC449Sec0114
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/nac/nac-449.html#NAC449Sec0114


APPENDIX A 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 1 of 6 

Appendix A: State Disclosure/Notification Requirements 

 Type of Change CALIFORNIA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) Licensing and Certification local office 

NEVADA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the Nevada Division of Public Health 
Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance. 

DEFINITIONS
: 

 

 “Governing body” means the person, persons, board of 
trustees, directors or other body in whom the final 
authority and responsibility is vested for conduct of the 
hospital. (22 CA ADC § 70035) 

“Principal officer” means the officer designated by an 
organization who has legal authority and responsibility 
to act for and in behalf of that organization.  (22 CA 
ADC § 70057)  

Skilled Nursing Facility:  “Administrator” means a 
person licensed as a nursing home administrator by the 
California Board of Examiners of Nursing Home 
Administrators or a person who has a state civil service 
classification or a state career executive appointment to 
perform that function in a state facility (Cal. Admin. 
Code tit. 22, § 72007). 

Home Health Agency:  “Administrator” means a person 
who is appointed in writing by the governing body of the 
home health agency to organize and direct the services 
and functions of the home health agency (Cal. Admin. 
Code tit. 22, § 74613). 

Primary Care Clinic:  No “administrator” definition 
provided, but content of original application must 
contain name of the administrator and a description of 
the administrator's experience and background and, 
where the same person is the administrator of more 
than one licensed clinic, the name of, and the number 
of hours spent in, each licensed clinic per week, and 
such other necessary information as may be required 
by CDPH. (Cal. Admin. Code tit. 22, § 75022)  

“Administrator” means the person responsible for 
the day-to-day management of a facility. (NAC 
449.0022) 

Hospice:  “Governing body” means the person or 
group of persons responsible for carrying out and 
monitoring the administration of a program of 
hospice care or for the operation of a facility for 
hospice care. (NAC 449.0173) 

96 of 134

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/nac/nac-449.html#NAC449Sec0022
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/nac/nac-449.html#NAC449Sec0022
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/nac/nac-449.html#NAC449Sec0022
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-449.html#NAC449Sec0173


APPENDIX A 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 2 of 6 

Appendix A: State Disclosure/Notification Requirements 

 Type of Change CALIFORNIA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) Licensing and Certification local office 

NEVADA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the Nevada Division of Public Health 
Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance. 

GENERAL 
ACUTE CARE 
HOSPITAL 
(CAH) 

Change in 
Ownership, 
Services, and 
Location 

Notify CDPH in writing 30 days prior to change of 
ownership any time a dissolution or transfer of 
ownership occurs. (Cal Code of Reg §70125)  Notify 
CDPH  in writing any time a change of stockholder 
owning ten percent or more of the non-public corporate 
stock occurs. Such notice shall include the name and 
principal mailing address of the new stockholder. The 
notice must include the name and principal mailing 
address of a new owner.  (Cal Code of Reg §70127) 

Notify CDPH in writing within ten (10) days prior to any 
change of the mailing address.  (Cal Code of Reg 
§70127)   

Notify the Health Division immediately of any 
change in the ownership of, the location of, or the 
services provided at, the facility.  (NAC 
449.0114(5)) 

Change in 
Administrative 
Leadership 

Notify CDPH in writing within ten (10) days of any 
change in the principal officer.  Include the name and 
principal business address.  (Cal Code of Reg §70127) 

 

Notify the Bureau in writing within ten (10) days a 
change of administrator occurs. (NAC 449.0114(4)) 
(The notification must provide evidence that the 
new administrator is currently licensed pursuant to 
chapter 654 of NRS and the related regulations.  
For failure to notify the Health Division and submit 
an application for a new license within 10 days 
after the change, must pay to the Health Division a 
fee in an amount equal to 150 percent of the fee 
required for a new application.) 

SKILLED 
NURSING 
FACILITY 

Change in 
Administrative 
Leadership 

Report of Changes:  
(a) Notify CDPH in writing of any changes in the 

information provided pursuant to Sections 1265 and 
1267.5, Health and Safety Code, within 10 days of 
such changes. This notification shall include 
information and documentation regarding such 
changes. 

(b) When a change of administrator occurs, notify 
CDPH in writing within 10 days. Include the name 
and license number of the new administrator. 

N/A 

97 of 134

http://weblinks.westlaw.com/result/default.aspx?cite=22CAADCS70127&db=1000937&findtype=L&fn=%5Ftop&pbc=DA010192&rlt=CLID%5FFQRLT8715149916273&rp=%2FSearch%2Fdefault%2Ewl&rs=WEBL14%2E01&service=Find&spa=CCR%2D1000&sr=TC&vr=2%2E0
http://weblinks.westlaw.com/result/default.aspx?cite=22CAADCS70127&db=1000937&findtype=L&fn=%5Ftop&pbc=DA010192&rlt=CLID%5FFQRLT8715149916273&rp=%2FSearch%2Fdefault%2Ewl&rs=WEBL14%2E01&service=Find&spa=CCR%2D1000&sr=TC&vr=2%2E0
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-449.html#NAC449Sec0114
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-449.html#NAC449Sec0114
http://weblinks.westlaw.com/result/default.aspx?cite=22CAADCS70127&db=1000937&findtype=L&fn=%5Ftop&pbc=DA010192&rlt=CLID%5FFQRLT8715149916273&rp=%2FSearch%2Fdefault%2Ewl&rs=WEBL14%2E01&service=Find&spa=CCR%2D1000&sr=TC&vr=2%2E0
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-449.html#NAC449Sec0114
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-654.html#NRS654


APPENDIX A 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 3 of 6 

Appendix A: State Disclosure/Notification Requirements 

 Type of Change CALIFORNIA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) Licensing and Certification local office 

NEVADA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the Nevada Division of Public Health 
Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance. 

(c) Notify CDPH within 10 days in writing of any 
change of the mailing address. Include the new 
mailing. 

(d) Notify CDPH in writing within ten (10) days when a 
change in the principal officer of a corporate 
licensee (chairman, president or general manager) 
occurs. Include the name and business address of 
such officer. 

(e) Notify CDPH in writing of any decrease in licensed 
bed capacity of the facility (result: in the issuance 
of a corrected license). 

 (22 CA Cal Code of Reg § 72211) 

HOME 
HEALTH 

Change in 
Ownership and/or 
Administrative 
Leadership: 
Disclosure and 
Report of Changes 

Disclosure:   
Disclose the following information to CDPH at the time 
of the home health agency's initial request for licensure, 
at the time of each survey, and at the time of any 
change in ownership or management: 
(a) The name and address of each person with an 

ownership or control interest of five percent or 
greater in the home health agency. 

(b) The name and address of each person who is an 
officer, a director, an agent, or a managing 
employee of the home health agency. 

(c) The name and address of the person, corporation, 
association, or other company that is responsible for 
the management of the home health agency, and 
the name and address of the chief executive officer 
and the chairman of the board of directors of the 
corporation, association or other company 
responsible for the management of the home health 
agency. 

(d) If any person described in (a), (b), or (c) has served 

Same as for Hospital 

98 of 134



APPENDIX A 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 4 of 6 

Appendix A: State Disclosure/Notification Requirements 

 Type of Change CALIFORNIA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) Licensing and Certification local office 

NEVADA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the Nevada Division of Public Health 
Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance. 

as or currently serves as an administrator, general 
partner, trustee or trust applicant, sole proprietor or 
any applicant or licensee who is a sole 
proprietorship, executor, or corporate officer or 
director of, or has held a beneficial ownership 
interest of 5 percent or more in any other home 
health agency, health facility, clinic, hospice, 
Pediatric Day Health and Respite Care Facility, 
Adult Day Health Care Center, or any facility 
licensed by the Department of Social Services, the 
applicant shall disclose the relationship to the 
Department, including the name and current or last 
address of the facility and the date such relationship 
commenced and, if applicable, the date it was 
terminated.  (22 CA Cal Code of Reg § 74665) 

Report of Changes:  
(a) Changes Requiring New Application. An 

application shall be submitted to the Department 
within 10 working days whenever a change of 
ownership occurs. A change of ownership shall be 
deemed to have occurred where, among other 
things, when compared with the information 
contained in the last approved license application 
of the licensee, there has occurred a transfer of 50 
percent or more of the issued stock of a corporate 
licensee, a transfer of 50 percent or more of the 
assets of the licensee, a change in partners or 
partnership interests of 50 percent or greater in 
terms of capital or share of profits, or a 
relinquishment by the licensee of the management 
of the agency. 

(b) Changes Requiring Written Notice. The licensee 
shall, within 10 days, notify the Department in 
writing of the following: 

99 of 134



APPENDIX A 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 5 of 6 

Appendix A: State Disclosure/Notification Requirements 

 Type of Change CALIFORNIA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) Licensing and Certification local office 

NEVADA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the Nevada Division of Public Health 
Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance. 

(1) Change of name of home health agency.  
(2) Change of location and/or address of home 
health agency.  
(3) Change in the licensing information 
required by subsection (a) of Section 74661.  
(4) Change of the mailing address of the 
licensee.  
(5) Change in the principal officer (chairman, 
president, general manager) of the governing 
board. Such written notice shall include the 
name and principal business address of each 
new principal officer.  
(6) Change of the administrator including the 
name and mailing address of the administrator, 
the date the administrator assumed office and 
a brief description of qualifications and 
background of the administrator.  
(7) Change of Director of Patient Care 
Services including the name and mailing 
address of the Director of Patient Care 
Services, the date the Director of Patient Care 
Services assumed office and a brief 
description of qualifications and background of 
the Director of Patient Care Services.  
(8) Addition or deletion of services.  

 (22 CA Cal Code of Reg § 74667) 

HOSPICE Change in 
Ownership/ 
Administrative 
Leadership: 
Disclose/Changes 

Same as for Home Health 

 

Immediately advise/notify the Health Division of 
any change in the ownership of the program and 
the address of the principal office of the program. 
NAC 449.0183 

PRIMARY Change in Report of Changes:  Same as for Hospital 

100 of 134

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-449.html#NAC449Sec0183


APPENDIX A 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
Page 6 of 6 

Appendix A: State Disclosure/Notification Requirements 

 Type of Change CALIFORNIA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) Licensing and Certification local office 

NEVADA:  Required Notifications/Disclosures 
submitted to the Nevada Division of Public Health 
Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance. 

CARE 
CLINICS 

Administrative 
Leadership 

(a) Any change in the principal officer such as 
chairperson, president, or general manager of the 
governing board shall be reported to CDPH in 
writing immediately, but in no case later than 10 
days following such change.  The notice shall 
include the name and principal business address 
of each new principal officer. 

(b) When a change of administrator occurs, notify 
CDPH in writing immediately, but in no case later 
than five (5) days following such change. The 
notification shall include the name of the new 
administrator, the mailing address, the date of 
assuming office and a brief description of his or 
her background and qualifications. 

(Cal. Admin. Code tit. 22, § 75025) 

MEDICAL 
STAFF 

Change in Med 
Staff Leadership 

N/A N/A 

101 of 134



APPENDIX B 

ABD-017 MannerOfGovernanceForTFHDBoardofDirectors 
 Page 1 of 1 
Appendix B: Pledge of Confidentiality 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District Board of Directors 
Pledge of Confidentiality 

 
In my role as a Member of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District, I 
acknowledge that I am given access to Confidential Information. 

“Confidential Information” means any non-public information related to the operations of the 
District, which is identified as confidential, or that by the nature of the information or the 
circumstances surrounding the disclosure of information, ought reasonably to be treated as 
confidential. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Confidential Information will be 
deemed to include, without limitation, information about the District’s business, healthcare 
operations, protected health information, services, employees, finances, costs, expenses, 
financial or competitive condition, trade secrets, policies practices, and other privileged, or 
otherwise sensitive data and information. 

I agree to treat all such confidential and proprietary information as strictly confidential, and shall 
use the utmost care to prevent disclosure of such. 

I acknowledge that I am given access to this Confidential Information for District purposes only 
and may not use or disclose Confidential Information for any purpose other than to conduct the 
business of the District in a manner consistent with its mission and corporate compliance plan. 

I agree to protect the integrity, security, and confidentiality of Confidential Information which I 
have, or may have access to or come into contact with, and I shall not disclose, share, copy, or 
transmit Confidential Information to those not authorized to receive it. 

I recognize that I may obtain access to patient protected health information provided under an 
assurance of confidentiality. I understand that I am prohibited from disclosing or otherwise 
releasing any personally identifying information, either directly or indirectly, about any individual 
or the individual’s health record.  I acknowledge and understand that Tahoe Forest Hospital 
District has established written policies and procedures containing provisions for the security of 
personal health information and that I am bound by these policies and procedures. I 
acknowledge that I have reviewed the Tahoe Forest Hospital District privacy requirements  

I acknowledge that I am responsible for maintaining privacy of health information as specified in 
the privacy provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA), and any subsequent statutes, regulations, and amendments thereto. 

I have been informed that I may direct any questions I have about my obligations under this 
Pledge of Confidentiality to the to Legal Counsel of the District with respect to the application of 
this Policy in general or whether a particular item is Confidential Information. 

Should I be responsible for any breach of confidentiality, I understand that civil and/or criminal 
penalties may be brought against me. I acknowledge that my responsibility to maintain and 
protect Confidential Information and to ensure the privacy of protected health information 
contained in any electronic records, paper documents, or verbal communications to which I may 
gain access shall not expire, even after my term or affiliation with the District has terminated.  

By my signature, I acknowledge that I have read, understand, and agree to comply with the 
terms, conditions, and obligations of this Confidentiality Agreement. 

 

_______________________________ _________________________________________ 
Printed Name Board of Director                    Signature    Date 

102 of 134



STRATEGIC PLAN
Fiscal Year 2015/2017

3 Year Plan
FINAL

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

Tahoe Forest Health System ADVANCEMENT 
THROUGH 

PARTNERSHIPS
CORE STRATEGIES

QUALITY AND SERVICE 
LEADER

PROMOTE 
COMMUNITY HEALTH 

IMPROVEMENT

HIGH PERFORMING 
AND HIGH VALUE

1. Goal:  Management and Medical 
Sta� will develop an annual quality and 
safety plan to be approved by the 
Board of Directors. 
Measurement:  Submit a completed 
annual Quality and Safety Plan for 
Board of Directors Approval. 

2. Goal:  Conduct patient satisfaction 
surveys, report outcomes and develop 
action plans for improvement in order 
to maintain HCHAPS 90% top box. 
Measurement:  Achieve HCHAPS 90% 
top box for “patient recommends this 
hospital” and “patients rate this hospital 
a 9 or 10.” 
Measurement:  Achieve Home Health 
HHCAHPS 90% top box for “patients 
recommend this home health agency” 
and “patients rate this home health 
agency a 9 or 10.”

3. Goal:  Under the supervision of the 
Quality Committee, develop a 
customer service improvement 
initiative that will include the creation 
of a patient advisory council. 
Measurement:  The Quality Committee 
adopts a customer service 
improvement plan and appoints a 
patient advisory council. 

4. Goal:  Maintain accreditation with 
HFAP (Health Facilities Accreditation 
Program). 
Measurement: Maintain deemed 
accreditation status. 

5. Goal:  The medical sta� will develop 
a medical sta� speci�c quality and 
patient satisfaction improvement 
program. 
Measurement:  Medical sta� produces 
patient quality and patient satisfaction 
improvement program, reports 
outcomes and collaborates with sta� 
on initiating plans for improvement

1. Goal:  Establish a formal system of 
communication and feedback with the 
medical sta� organization and its 
medical leadership to optimize medical 
sta� involvement in strategic planning, 
health system projects and program 
innovation. 
Measurement:  Medical sta� approval 
of the strategic plan. 
Measurement:  Director of Medical 
Sta� Planning and Innovation and 
senior management meet regularly to 
review progress against speci�c 
programs, innovations and initiatives 
that achieve the goals identi�ed in the 
strategic plan.   

2. Goal:  Conduct a formal survey to 
optimize employee engagement and 
use results to indentify opportunities 
for improvement in Best Place to Work 
and Practice goals.  
Measurement:  An employee 
engagement action plan is developed 
and executed to inform priorities as 
part of the Great Workplace project and 
reported out quarterly at the board 
personnel committee. 
 
3. Goal:  Conduct two-way 
communication with employees about 
health system goals, projects and 
priorities. 
Measurement: Conduct annual Town 
Hall employee focus group and annual 
employee Town Hall Meetings. 
Measurement:  Publish a monthly 
employee newsletter to communicate 
key employee-speci�c information and 
gather feedback. 

4. Goal:  Implement the next level of 
Just Culture training for organizational 
improvement. 
Measurement: Completed Just Culture 
training. The Just Culture training will 
be ongoing to ensure employees and 
medical sta� are informed of the 
principles of Just Culture and how it 
bene�ts the organization.

5. Goal:  Regularly communicate 
system-wide services, priorities, 
projects and activities to health system 
community advisory groups and 
agencies that represent the 
demographic interests of the 
community.  
Measurement:  Report out progress on 
health system programs and initiatives 
at community advisory council and 
foundation meetings. 
Measurement: Maintain external 
communication through the available 
media outlets utilizing the Tahoe Forest 
Health System Magazine as a primary 
communication tool. 
Measurement: Maintain active 
community outreach through the 
community development department. 
 

1. Goal:  Continue to meet or improve 
upon revenue and EBIDA budgets 
while maintaining a level of cash �ow 
that will ensure our continued 
operational stability. 
Measurement: Continuing a projection 
of long-term �nancial success based on 
pro�tability and maintenance of a 
strong balance sheet. 

2. Goal:  Develop a plan to operate 
Tahoe Forest Health System at the 
median or better cost structure of our 
hospital cohort. 
Measurement: Benchmark operating 
costs by department and service lines 
to like-size service organizations and 
initiate speci�c operational improve-
ment plans to meet the desired 
benchmark. 

3. Goal:  Develop a plan with assistance 
of �nance committee to establish 
service-pricing standards that enable 
the health system to achieve �nancial 
sustainability while balancing 
community needs. 
Measurement:  Management with the 
assistance of Jacobus and the Finance 
Committee will �nalize a pricing plan. 

4. Goal: Stabilize and optimize revenue 
cycle performance.  
Measurement:  Budgeted �nancial 
targets. 

5. Goal: Improve the continuity, 
e�ectiveness and e�ciency of care 
delivery in clinical service areas utilizing 
process improvement methods. 
Measurement:  Develop and deploy 
process improvement teams in clinical 
service areas where operating 
expenses exceed 75% of the 
benchmark for our hospital cohort. 

6. Goal:  Evaluate current and potential 
contract relationships with all payers, 
employers and providers. 
Measurement:  Success in retaining 
current contract rates with commercial 
contracts. 
Measurement:  Securing new 
contracts with payers for Medi-Cal 
managed care and the Nevada and 
California health insurance exchanges. 
Measurement:  Organizing 
collaborative communications through 
the community development 
department with employers and 
insurance representative to explore 
opportunities for direct contracting. 
Measurement:  Implementation of the 
patient satisfaction survey with TFHS 
employees and implement a process 
improvement plan.

1. Goal:  Develop and deploy 
short-term IT EMR plan to optimize use 
of current CPSI software to meet 
Meaningful Use stage one and ICD-10. 
Measurement:  Short-term IT EMR plan 
is developed, communicated and 
deployed. 
Measurement: Implement CPSI version 
19 to enable ICD-10 compliance. 

2. Goal:  Develop and approve 
Meaningful Use stage one attestation 
plan 
Measurement: TFHS hospitals will 
submit the plan no later than 4th 
quarter of the 2015 federal �scal year 
(July 2015).  

3. Goal:  Develop a long-range IT EMR 
plan (3-10 years) to optimize potential 
strategic technology investments and 
execute after approval from the Board 
of Directors. 
Measurement:  Presentation of the IT 
EMR strategic plan to the Board of 
Directors with the assistance of IT 
Optimizers by the end of �scal year 
14/15. 
Measurement:  Approval by Board of 
Directors of an IT EMR strategic plan 

1. Goal: Continue our health system 
collaboration with UC Davis and 
explore potential enhancements to 
that collaboration. 
Measurement: Management will 
periodically report to the Board of 
Directors on continued ongoing 
planning and discussion meetings with 
UC Davis leadership. 

2. Goal:   Explore partnership 
opportunities with regional and local 
health systems to improve e�ciency 
and e�ectiveness of care delivery. 
Measurement: Management will 
periodically report to the Board of 
Directors about dialogue with local and 
regional hospital providers on potential 
strategies for gaining e�ciency in 
operations.  

3. Goal: Explore potential opportunities 
to collaborate with local medical 
providers to improve health delivery. 
Measurement: Management will 
periodically report to the Board of 
Directors about relevant potential 
collaborations. 

4. Goal:  Develop and deploy a 
succession-planning model for all 
specialties of the medical sta�. 
Measurement:  Deploy a committee 
and periodically report the activities of 
the committee to the medical sta� and 
Board of Directors. 

5. Goal:  Appoint a collaborative team 
to advance a community care 
organization model led by the Medical 
Director for Planning and Innovation to 
optimize population health 
management. 
Measurement: Organize and deploy a 
project team to develop the initiative.  
Measurement:  Have the Medical 
Director for Planning and Innovation 
provide a periodic progress report to 
the Board of Directors. 

6. Goal:  Develop strategies to optimize 
performance of the Truckee Surgery 
Center as a component of the health 
system. 
Measurement:  Evaluate operating 
performance through an operational 
audit and market assessment and 
present �ndings and recommendations 
to the Truckee Surgery Center Board. 

1. Goal:  Create a market study to 
inform ongoing and potential service 
line investments. 
Measurement:  Retain Healthshare IQ 
to perform a market study and 
operational analysis to benchmark 
service line pro�tability and establish 
priorities and opportunities for 
improvement. 
Measurement:  Management with the 
assistance of Healthshare IQ will 
provide periodic reports to the Finance 
Committee about speci�c service line 
performance improvement initiatives. 

2. Goal: Continue to work with the 
Orthopedic Advisory Council to design 
a high performing model that 
optimizes the delivery of sports 
medicine and orthopedic programs in 
our region. 
Measurement: Management will 
periodically report to the Board of 
Directors the progress of the council. 

3. Goal:  Explore opportunities to 
expand the GUMTFCC Cancer Care 
Network through telemedicine 
initiatives. 
Measurement: Management will 
periodically report to the Board of 
Directors on Cancer Center initiatives.  

4. Goal:  Execute the health system 
Facilities Development Plan and 
augment the plan to account for the 
needs of primary care medical o�ce 
space expansion. 
Measurement:  Report quarterly on 
progress to the Board of Directors and 
COC on Measure C projects.  
Measurement:  Engage with facility 
planners to develop medical o�ce 
space plan for primary care.  
Measurement:  Review the plan and 
�nancing requirements with the Board 
of Directors. 

5. Goal:  Utilize contract with EXOS to 
access and develop a transition plan to 
improve the overall value of the Tahoe 
WoRx program.
Measurement:  Develop a new 
business model (Corporate Health) to 
enhance performance of the Tahoe 
WoRx program.  

1. Goal:  Implement the Tahoe Forest 
PPO and assess opportunities for direct 
contracting with local employers. 
Measurement:  Management will 
provide a contracting update as part of 
the Finance Committee report. 

2. Goal:  Engage the community 
through the health system’s 
Foundation and Advisory Councils. 
Measurement:  Management and 
Board of Director representative will 
report periodically the activities of 
these community groups.  

3. Goal:  Develop and expand 
philanthropy and volunteer services 
congruent with the �ve-year 
Foundation Development Plan. 
Measurement: Report progress against 
goals quarterly of the Foundation Fund 
Development plan. 

4. Goal:  Communicate speci�c 
information to the community about 
TFHS as a high-value service provider. 
Measurement: Publish a health system 
informational magazine focusing on 
health system services, programs and 
community bene�t three times per 
year. 
Measurement:  Develop a community 
bene�t report that highlights key 
accomplishments and services. 

5. Goal:  Develop programming to 
enhance patient care navigation and 
coordination in select service lines.
Measurement: Evaluate and identify 
opportunities for improvement in 
navigation for cancer patients.
Measurement:  Develop a navigation 
program for acute injury patients 
associated with Northstar Clinic as 
Phase I of a broader program. 
Measurement:  Develop a navigation 
system for hospital-based outpatient 
services. 

1. Goal:  Evaluate progress against the 
�ve Community Health Improvement 
Plan goals established by the Board of 
Directors and incorporate relevant 
programming into the new Wellness 
Neighborhood plan.
Measurement:  Provide progress 
reports on the organization, 
development and results associated 
with programming based on the Board 
of Directors Community Health 
Improvement Plan.

2. Goal:  Develop strategic plan 
documents that align Wellness and 
Community Health programs with 
health status benchmarks, community 
care models, and local partnerships to 
address de�ned needs. 
Measurement:  Intervention strategies 
are linked with selected health status 
indicators and measured annually.

3. Goal:  Execute a 2014 Community 
Health Needs Assessment in the 
Truckee/North Tahoe and Incline Village 
communities and evaluate health 
status indicators in conjunction with 
community survey responses.
Measurement:  Assessment 
documents completed that provide: 
2014 health status benchmarks, 
documentation of access to care 
barriers, evaluation of community 
needs, and gap analysis between 2011 
and 2014 assessments.

MEASURABLE GOALS

1. Patients, Service and 
Quality

2. Develop an accountable 
and fully engaged team

3. Maintain �nancial 
performance

4. Make the most e�ective 
investment in and use of 

information systems

5. Partner with regional 
and local medical providers

6. Grow market share in 
select clinical service lines

7. Positioned as a high-
value service provider

8. Achieve equitable, sustainable 
programs and partnerships that 
respond to local health priorities

KEY
Red = Complete
Black = Ongoing
Blue = Under review

103 of 134



SUMMARY RESULTS
Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
2014 Governance Self-Assessment 

Provided as a Member Service By 

104 of 134



2 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

I n November-December 2014 the Tahoe Forest Hospital 
District Board of Directors assessed the board’s overall 

leadership performance.  The board also identified issues and 
priorities for the future.    

Board members assessed the board’s overall performance in ten 
leadership areas, including: 

 Mission, values and vision; 

 Strategic direction; 

 Leadership structure and processes; 

 Quality and patient safety; 

 Community relationships; 

 Relationship with the CEO; 

 Relationships with the medical staff; 

 Financial leadership; 

 Community health; and 

 Organizational ethics. 

Board members rated 167 total criteria in these ten areas. 

 

How the Self-Assessment Was Conducted 

The governance self-assessment was conducted using an online 
survey.  All five Tahoe Forest Hospital District board members 
completed the self-assessment.   

Respondents rated a variety of statements in the ten areas 
above, using a scale ranging from “Level 5 (Strongly Agree)” to 
“Level 1 (Completely Disagree).”  “Not Sure” and “Not Applicable” 
choices were also available for each statement. 

Mean scores for each statement were calculated using a five 
point scale (Level 5 - Level 1).  No points were assigned to “Not 
Sure” and “Not Applicable” ratings.    

Finally, board members provided insights about their priorities 
for the board in the next year; defined the board’s strengths and 
weaknesses; identified key issues that should occupy the 
board’s time and attention in the next year; provided insights 
about the most significant trends the board must be able to 
understand and deal with in the next year; and identified critical 
factors that must be addressed for the organization to 
successfully achieve its goals. 

 

Rating Methodology 

The following rating scale was used to evaluate overall board 
performance: 

 Level 5: I strongly agree with this statement.  We always 
practice this as a part of our governance. Our performance 
in this area is outstanding. 

 Level 4: I generally agree with this statement. We usually 
practice this as a part of our governance, but not always. 
We perform well in this area. 

 Level 3: I somewhat agree with this statement.  We often 
practice this in our governance, but we are not consistent. 
We perform fairly well in this area. 

 Level 2: I somewhat disagree with this statement.  We 
inconsistently practice this as a part of our governance.  We 
do not perform well in this area. 

 Level 1: I disagree with this statement.  We never practice 
this as a part of our governance.  We perform very poorly in 
this area. 

 N/S: Not sure.  I do not have enough information to make a 
determination about our performance in this area.  

 N/A: Not applicable. 

 

Reviewing This Report 

Board member ratings of board self-assessment criteria are 
depicted throughout this report in graphs.   

The criteria in each graph are displayed in order from highest to 
lowest mean score.  The mean score for each individual rating 
criterion appears to the right of the graph.   

To facilitate the identification of areas that may require 
governance and/or management attention, each graph 
includes the number of Level 5 - Level 1 responses to each 
statement in the color-coded bars.  Responses are grouped and 
color coded, with “Level 5” appearing in dark green, “Level 4” in 
light green, “Level 3” in yellow, “Level 2” in orange, and “Level 1” 
in red.  “Not Sure” responses appear in gray, and “Not 
Applicable” responses appear in white. 

Longer lists of criteria have been separated into higher and 
lower rated sections for ease of display and analysis. 

Board member responses to all open-ended questions appear 
throughout the report, where applicable, and on pages 28-29.  

Self-Assessment Overview 

105 of 134



3 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Mission, Values and Vision 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The board needs to update the mission and vision. 

 The organization has a clear mission and vision.  Its values have been tested this past year by a board who seems to want to 
question and negate a decade of success and achievement.  The board needs to reaffirm its commitment to the mission, 
vision and values or adopt a new set they can embrace.  

 Actively consider our Mission, Values and Vision when reviewing strategic plans for TFHD. 

 Revise the Mission Statement. 

Mission, Values and Vision 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

3

1

1

3

3

3

4

4

4

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The mission, values and vision drive decision making at all
board meetings

The board regularly reviews the status of strategies and
objectives to ensure fit with the mission and vision

The board uses the mission, values and vision when making
policy and strategic decisions in the best long-term interests of

the organization and the community we serve

The board tests all policy and strategy decisions by asking
how/if they will strengthen our ability to achieve the mission and

vision

Board members fulfill their leadership role by ensuring
achievement of the mission, values and vision

The mission, values and vision drive organizational strategies,
objectives and action plans

Our organization has a clear, focused and relevant written
values

Our organization has a clear, focused and relevant written
mission

Our organization has a clear, focused and relevant written vision

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.40 

3.80 

3.75 

3.60 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

3.00 

3.00 

106 of 134



4 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Strategic Direction 
The Strategic Planning Process  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

3

3

3

4

1

4

4

3

2

2

2

1

4

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board focuses the majority of its time on strategic thinking
and strategic leadership rather than strategic plans

The board responds to new challenges with knowledge-based
ideas and directions

The board's collective understanding of the evolving
political/economic environment (local, regional and national)

ensures effective strategic decision making

Strategic information provided to the board enables a clear
understanding of issues and challenges, and facilitates decision

making

Our organization's strategic objectives are clearly
communicated to the board, employees and other stakeholder

individuals and organizations

Board members understand strategic issues the organization is
facing, and the factors most critical to organizational success

and performance

Our organization has a flexible, responsive strategic planning
process

The board is well-familiar with the planning data and
assumptions that form the foundation for the strategic plan

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.80 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

3.40 

3.20 

2.80 

2.20 

Community and Stakeholder Perspectives  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

3

4

1

1

1 1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board ensures that stakeholders' and constituents' needs,
interests and viewpoints are assessed in developing goals and

strategies

Governance decisions are principally based on meeting
community needs

Board members understand critical community health needs
and challenges

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.75 

3.25 

3.20 

107 of 134



5 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 Improve how we communicate with and receive input from the community. 

 There has been a tremendous amount of progress in adopting strategic alignment with the physicians, the board and the 
rest of the organization.  This past year has been challenging insofar as the media has attempted to create a wedge between 
the community and the health system over issues that may be beyond the ability of the health system to be able to control 
(pricing). 

 The board needs to develop "key performance indicators" that define success.  Something that we have not been able to get 
support on from our CEO!  We need more focus on Strategic Issues and less on housekeeping and compliance.  (Compliance 
is important but let staff do the leg work.) 

Monitoring Progress  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Criteria is in place for evaluating new service feasibility and
value in fulfilling the mission and vision

The board regularly monitors progress toward the achievement
of our strategic objectives, using board-approved key

performance indicators that define organizational success

The board takes timely corrective actions if/when objectives are
not being met

The board annually reviews the strengths and weaknesses of
the organization's entities, and their role and value in mission

and vision fulfillment

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.40 

3.20 

3.20 

3.00 

108 of 134



6 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Leadership Structure and Processes 
Board Roles and Responsibilities  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

1

1

2

1

4

3

2

3

2

3

1

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Board members consistently follow our decision protocols and
procedures

The board's role and responsibilities are consistently adhered to

New board members go through an orientation process

Decision protocols and procedures have been established

The board's roles and responsibilities are clearly defined in a
written document

Directors' and officers liability insurance provides the protection
needed to reassure board members that a "safe" governance

environment exists

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.40 

4.20 

3.25 

3.00 

3.00 

3.00 

Board Structure and Composition  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

3

2

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board encourages critical dialogue among its members

The board fosters leaders who understand how to encourage
innovation and welcome organizational change

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.50 

3.00 

109 of 134



7 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Board Member Performance  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

2

1

2

2

2

1

2

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board has a process for determining when a board
member is not performing to the board's standards or

requirements

The board has a process for removing a board member from
the board for non-performance

The board has a process for improving individual board
member effectiveness when non-performance becomes a

governance issue

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

1.75 

1.67 

1.50 

Strategic Focus  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

2

4

3

4

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

At least 75 percent of the board's meeting time is spent
focusing on strategic issues

The board resolves problems effectively, even when the
solutions are uncomfortable to implement

The board engages in productive policy-making and strategic
discussion

The board adheres to its policy-making function, and does not
engage in operational thinking or decision making

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.00 

2.80 

2.60 

2.20 

110 of 134



8 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Board Meetings  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

2

2

2

1

3

1

1

1

1

2

3

5

4

2

2

2

2

2

1

1

2

2

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board chair is well-skilled in the dynamics of effective
meeting management and leadership, and keeps meetings well-

organized and tightly constructed

The board chair keeps a tight rein on digressions, members'
side discussions, and issues that have already been addressed

Board members' time is respected and used efficiently, and
board member involvement and participation are enhanced as a

result

Agendas reflect our strategic issues and priorities, and focus on
specific outcomes the board wants to achieve at the meeting

Meeting agendas provide adequate time to discuss and act on
significant strategic issues

The board saves critical time for important discussions by
utilizing a consent agenda covering the routine actions that

require approval

Board meetings comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act

The frequency of our board meetings ensures timely decisions

Board meeting attendance meets our organization's need for
broad-based and inclusive dialogue, and consensus-based

decision making

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.00 

4.00 

4.00 

3.60 

3.20 

3.00 

2.40 

2.00 

1.80 

111 of 134



9 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Board Member Knowledge  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

1

2

2

1

1

3

2

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Board members receive well thought-out strategic options and
alternatives from management prior to defining a strategic

course of action

Each board member is provided with the background
information and intelligence resources required for active

participation in board dialogue

A continual flow of new information and assumptions are
presented at board meetings, and board members use the

information to modify strategic direction as necessary

Board members have a clear and comprehensive understanding
of the changing health care environment (local, regional and

national) and its effects on the organization

A regular environmental assessment is conducted, ensuring
board understanding of the changes taking place in the health

care environment, and their implications on the organization, its
physicians, and local health care consumers

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.50 

3.20 

3.00 

2.80 

2.40 

Governance Development  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

2

2

3

4

3

3

2

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board has an education development plan that assures
board member understanding of issues essential to effective
governance, including education at every board meeting, and

annually at the board retreat

Board orientation and education broadens board members'
perspectives about the challenges our organization will face in

the future

A governance development process is in place that identifies
governance issues, determines educational needs, and

manages the governance self-assessment process

The board develops and implements an annual governance
improvement plan

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.40 

3.40 

2.80 

2.60 

112 of 134



10 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Meeting Materials  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

1

2

3

3

2

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Board members receive agendas and meeting materials at
least one week in advance of board, committee and task force

meetings

The information the board receives is relevant, timely,
understandable and actionable, and facilitates board decision

making

Our meeting materials promote meaningful dialogue and
critical decision-making

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

2.80 

2.60 

2.00 

Board Relationships and Communication: Higher-Rated  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

2

3

3

1

2

3

2

1

4

1

3

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Board members are open about their thoughts and feelings

Opportunities for individual participation strengthen decision-
making, enrich discussion, build understanding and prepare
individual board members for future leadership challenges

The board takes time to discuss difficult issues

Every board member has a voice in our governance decisions

The board has a conflict resolution process

Board members annually declare conflicts that may inhibit their
ability to provide unbiased, independent thinking and decision-

making

The board has conflict of interest policy

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.40 

4.20 

3.75 

3.60 

3.60 

3.40 

3.40 

113 of 134



11 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 Interpersonal conflicts are distracting the board and impeding effective governance.  Work is needed on development of 
code of conduct, gaining agreement to comply with it, and policy/procedure for addressing noncompliance.  

 Board governance has broken down this year.  Extreme conflict has developed between an element of the board and 
management.  The newly elected board should schedule an off-site workshop as soon as possible to determine how they 
can effectively work together to build consensus on issues in the future.   

 The board is poorly informed on most issues on the agenda for discussion and action -- following years of asking, it's time for 
a new CEO! 

 

 

Board Relationships and Communication: Lower Rated  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

2

3

1

4

4

4

2

2

2

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Working relationships among board members are good

The board has an environment where board members engage in
vibrant dialogue that challenges conventional thinking

Board dialogue creates consensus and positive new directions

The governance culture is open to alternative views, and
constructively challenges "conventional wisdom"

The board's decision pathways ensure that all critical decisions
include the proper mix of background, discussion of
alternatives, potential outcomes and preferred choice

The board's decision-making culture includes active
involvement, questioning, probing, challenging and stimulating

discussion and dialogue on meaningful issues

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

2.80 

2.75 

2.60 

114 of 134



12 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Quality and Patient Safety 
Defining and Understanding Quality and Patient Safety Issues: Higher-Rated 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

3

3

3

4

4

4

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1 2

0 1 2 3 4 5

Our organization has a board approved definition of quality

Our organization has a board-approved, organization-wide plan
with objectives for improving patient safety and reducing

medical errors

The board-approved plan ensures compliance with applicable
state, federal and local regulatory and statutory requirements

The board has approved a Patients' Bill of Rights

Quality improvement is a core organizational strategy

The board supports investment in organizational improvements
that will improve safety

The board has discussed and adheres to Joint Commission
leadership-related accreditation standards

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

5.00 

4.80 

4.80 

4.80 

4.75 

4.75 

4.75 

115 of 134



13 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Defining and Understanding Quality and Patient Safety Issues: Lower-Rated 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

3

2

2

2

2

3

2

1

1

1

1 1

1

1

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Our organization has approved quality measures for patient
services provided through contractual arrangements by other

organizations on the organization's behalf

The board's definition of quality encompasses community
health, wellness and prevention

Our organization has a board approved definition of patient
safety

The board has a policy to ensure that ethnic and/or racial
diversity is not a barrier to access to care

The board, leadership team and medical staff meet the Joint
Commission's quality standards

Our organization achieves the Joint Commission's national
patient safety goals

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.67 

4.67 

4.60 

4.25 

4.00 

3.75 

116 of 134



14 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Monitoring Quality and Patient Safety  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

3

2

3

3

3

4

4

4

3

3

1

2

2

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Quality and patient safety performance and issues are reviewed at
every board meeting

The CEO's performance objectives are based on measurable and
achievable quality goals

The board uses the results of patient perception studies to ensure
improvement in the patient experience

The board monitors compliance with applicable state, federal and
local regulatory and statutory requirements

Our organization has a quality improvement process that
continuously defines, measures and improves quality at all levels,

including clinical, service and organizational development

The board effectively carries out its responsibility for ensuring
high quality, safe patient care

The board has established clearly-defined and measurable quality
improvement targets

The board consistently evaluates performance against targets to
ensure achievement of the board's quality and patient safety

improvement plan

Our organization has a quality improvement process for identifying
and reporting adverse events impacting patients, and ensures

actions to prevent recurrence

The board approves the written performance improvement or
quality assessment plan

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.80 

4.80 

4.80 

4.60 

4.60 

4.60 

4.50 

4.40 

4.00 

3.75 

117 of 134



15 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The board can improve its involvement in identifying and monitoring quality measures in separate business units - all facets 
of the health care system. 

 Vast improvement in quality outcomes over the past decade.  Great results from HFAP survey conducted last spring confirms 
this. 

Ensuring a Workforce that Provides High Quality and Safe Care  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

4

4

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board's process of approving appointments and
reappointments to the medical staff meets its quality and legal

responsibilities

The board ensures that appropriate resources are in place to
assure a competent, high-quality patient care workforce

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.80 

4.80 

118 of 134



16 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Community Relationships 
Ensuring Public Trust and Confidence  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

1

1

3

2

2

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Our organization regularly measures the public's perceptions of
its programs and services, community contribution, perceived

trust, economic impact and overall value as a community health
asset

Our organization has a plan for board member advocacy that
advances the organization's image, reputation and market

position

The board's actions contribute to building and sustaining a
positive image for the organization

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.00 

2.75 

2.60 

Ensuring Community Communication and Feedback  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

3

3

2

2

2

3

1

1

1

2

2

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board ensures that the organization's plans and priorities
are well-communicated to our community stakeholders

The board utilizes board members as community
"ambassadors" to communicate with stakeholders on important

health care issues

The board has established a process for eliciting community
input and viewpoints about future service needs and

opportunities

The board's role in local, regional and state political advocacy
advances the organization's standing with political leaders

Our legislators understand our mission/role

The board works with others in the community to develop
collaborative partnerships in building a healthier community

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.60 

3.33 

3.33 

3.20 

3.00 

3.00 

119 of 134



17 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The board has to engage more actively with our community to listen to issues, address concerns, and communicate strategy, 
contributions, and value. 

 Need to do a better job of communication.  Need to reach out to community for their input.  Adopt social media as well as 
conventional ways to do this. 

 Pointed community surveys that ask residents what they like and what they don't like about TFHD, including what services 
they would like to have better access to.  Let them talk! 

120 of 134



18 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Relationship with the CEO 
Board and CEO Roles  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

3

3

2

3

1

2

2

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board and CEO have clear, mutually agreed-upon
expectations of one another

The board's strategic/policy responsibilities vs. the CEO's
operational responsibilities are followed

The board and CEO have clearly defined roles

Board members adhere to the governing board's policy-making
role and do not interfere in the CEO's operations management

role

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.80 

3.60 

3.40 

3.40 

Communication, Support and Shared Goals  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

1

2

3

2

1

3

3

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

3

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The chairman-CEO relationship sets a positive, constructive
framework for the overall board-CEO relationship

The board uses executive sessions to promote open
communication between the board and CEO

The board and CEO work together with a sense of purpose

Mutual trust and respect exists between board members and the
CEO

The board always hears from the CEO in advance of a difficult or
potentially problematic organizational issue

The board consistently supports the CEO in the pursuit and
implementation of board-approved objectives

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.60 

3.40 

3.00 

3.00 

2.80 

1.60 

121 of 134



19 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The conflict between the Chair and the CEO has undermined the efficacy of the board.  The board can improve its leadership 
by keeping a forward facing focus on the strategic goals of the organization. 

 Extreme breakdown between the board chair and CEO.  Need to rebuild a level of trust between board and CEO. 

 We need a CEO more focused on day-to-day operations (along with some strategic thinking).  The CEO does not know how 
to use the board's Policy Making authority - several times this year stating "well, if the board had set a policy on..." issues we 
were not informed about. 

CEO Evaluation  
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

2

3

3

2

2

1

2

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The CEO's compensation is linked to strategic performance

The board evaluates and compensates the CEO using pre-
defined expectations and defined performance targets tied to
achievement of the mission, vision and strategic objectives

annually

The board ensures that the CEO's compensation package
stimulates and rewards excellent performance

The board regularly reviews the CEO's compensation to ensure
that it is reflective of compensation trends among other

organizations of similar size, and that it reflects the magnitude
of challenges and issues facing the administration and the

organization

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.40 

3.80 

3.80 

3.60 

122 of 134



20 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Relationships with the Medical Staff 
Physician Involvement in Decision Making 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

2

2

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board ensures physician participation in the development
of our organization's mission, values and vision

Members of the medical staff offer advice and counsel on
strategic issues

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.80 

4.80 

Shared Understanding 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

3

4

3

3

1 1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board ensures that the interests of the physician
community are addressed as the organization strives to fulfill its

mission

The board and medical staff develop and share common goals

Board members understand the roles and responsibilities of the
medical executive committee

Board members understand the board's role with respect to the
medical staff credentialing and quality of care process

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.40 

4.25 

4.00 

3.75 

123 of 134



21 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The board can improve its direct communication with physicians and implement a process to assess physician attitudes and 
needs proactively.  

 Relationships between the medical community, the board and the administration are generally good and have improved 
over the years. 

 We ask physicians about CEO performance.  We do not "assess physician attitudes and needs" and in today’s world, we may 
have to start doing this. 

Communication and Interaction 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

2

3

3

3

1

1

1

2 1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board regularly assesses physician attitudes and needs

There is effective communication between the board and the
medical staff

There is an effective method for communicating board
decisions that impact physicians, their practices and their

patients

The board builds trust with physicians through collaborative
and productive working relationships

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

3.75 

3.75 

3.75 

3.00 

124 of 134



22 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Financial Leadership 
The Fiduciary Responsibility 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

2

2

3

3

3

4

4

4

4

3

3

2

2

2

1

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board leads the development of long-range and short-range
financial planning

The board uses the annual budget process to define the most
effective allocation of our organization's limited resources

The board annually adopts a long-term capital expenditure
budget, with expenditures prioritized based on greatest value

The board successfully carries out its fiduciary responsibility
for the oversight of financial resources

The board ensures that adequate capital is available for our
organization's growth

Board members are comfortable asking questions about
financial issues during board meetings

The board measures operational performance against the plans

Regular financial reports made to the board are understandable
and meaningful

The board directs the conduct of an annual audit, and
thoroughly discusses all recommendations from the
independent auditor's report and management letter

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.80 

4.80 

4.80 

4.60 

4.60 

4.60 

4.40 

4.40 

3.80 

125 of 134



23 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The board can improve its leadership by increased monitoring of financial performance in subsidiary entities, such as the 
Surgery Center and MSC. 

 Excellent financial leadership from administration over the years.  Healthy balance sheet and income statements as well.  Very 
well-positioned for the upcoming challenges of health care reform.  

 We still do not get regular reports on the strategic goals and financial value of the Foundation.  There are fundraising 
opportunities here that are not being addressed per the strategic discussion of a few years back. 

Monitoring Progress 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

3

3

4

3

1

1

2

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board uses financial performance reports to modify
assumptions and shift resources, as necessary

Financial reports are presented in a format that is easy to
understand, highlights major trends and stimulates creative

discussion that enables timely and effective decision making

Performance targets are discussed at least quarterly

The board identifies and approves targets for important
measures of financial and operational performance needed by

the board to monitor organizational performance and make
timely, informed decisions

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.60 

4.40 

4.20 

4.00 

126 of 134



24 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Community Health 
Development and Support of Community Health Initiatives 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

2

2

2

4

2

4

2

2

2

2

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Our organization jointly advocates with other community
organizations for legislation, regulation and other actions to

address community health and socioeconomic issues

CEO performance objectives include a focus on improving
community health

Our organization conducts an annual or semi-annual community
needs assessment that defines and measures improvement in

the community's health

The board has a clear and consensus-driven understanding of
the most important community health needs and issues

Our organization has defined what constitutes our "community"

There is a board-wide understanding of and commitment to
building a healthier community

The board understands the strategic importance of initiatives
designed to improve the health of the community

Our organization promotes and supports specific initiatives
whose sole purpose is improving community health, regardless

of financial gain

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.60 

4.20 

4.20 

4.00 

3.80 

3.60 

3.25 

2.67 

127 of 134



25 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The Community Health Improvement Plan should have measurable goals for improving health, but we should also consider 
a way to evaluate community feedback on the value of programs and services. 

 Just completed a tri-annual community health needs assessment.  Need to find creative ways to communicate its results and 
to engage the community in evaluating the progress of the initiatives it identifies.  Again, new communication tools are in 
order to engage the community in dialogue. 

Community Involvement and Communication 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

1

2

2

2

1

3

2

2

1

2 1

2

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

Our organization has a process to secure and evaluate
community feedback on the value of our programs and services

Our organization and its community partners disseminate the
results of their shared improvement efforts to our state and
federal legislators, community and interested stakeholders

Our organization, in conjunction with its community partners,
regularly assesses the value and impact of our joint community
health improvement efforts using specific measures of health

status, health outcomes and services provided

Our organization uses feedback from the community to
enhance responsiveness to its community health improvement

opportunities

Our organization establishes community partnerships to
leverage services and resources to maximize community
benefit and carry out our community health improvement

agenda

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.00 

3.50 

3.50 

3.00 

2.75 

128 of 134



26 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Organizational Ethics 
Ensuring Development and Implementation of Organizational Ethics 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

2

1

1

1

2

2

2

1

2

1

1

2

2

2

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board ensures that procedures and training are in place to
ensure that our values and principles are consistently applied

to governance decision making processes

The board has adopted a statement of values and ethical
principles for the board members

The board's workforce development policy ensures that
compliance with our ethical values and principles is a

component of employee evaluations

The board has adopted a statement of values and ethical
principles for the organization

The board ensures compliance with applicable state, federal
and local regulatory and statutory requirements

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.20 

4.20 

3.33 

3.20 

2.80 

Awareness of Ethical Issues 
(sorted by highest to lowest mean score) 

1

2

2

3

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

1

1

1

0 1 2 3 4 5

The board ensures that information on our ethical principles
and values are provided to all individuals who are employed

by, volunteer with, or are formally affiliated with our
organization

The board ensures that information on our ethical principles
and values are provided to patients and their families

The board ensures a process to allow employees to
confidentially bring concerns about ethical issues to the

attention of management

The board ensures a process to allow physicians to
confidentially bring concerns about ethical issues to the

attention of management

The board ensures a process to allow patients to
confidentially bring concerns about ethical issues to the

attention of management

Level 5 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 N/S N/A

Mean Score 

4.50 

4.25 

4.25 

4.00 

3.67 

129 of 134



27 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Suggestions for Governance Improvement 

Board members provided the following suggestions for governance improvement in this section: 

 The board can review organizational values and ethics and adopt a statement for board members as part of a code of 
conduct.  The board should receive education on how the ethical principles and values are provided  to patients, families, 
employees and volunteers. 

 Need to reevaluate the ethical behavior and responsibility of board members. 

130 of 134



28 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Issues and Priorities 
 
 Highest Priority for the Board in the Next Year 

 Question:  What is your single highest priority for the board in the next year? 

 Listening to the community, addressing their concerns, regaining trust and improving the perceived value of Tahoe 
Forest Health System. 

 Provide a better method for two-way communication with the community.  

 Need for board and management to identify how they are going to build consensus and trust to manage the health 
system in the future. 

 Improving the board's performance/procedure/process on the management of strategic issues and demanding that the 
CEO and staff provide the board with relevant and meaningful information to support a comprehensive discussion and 
best outcome on strategic topics. 

 Honesty and transparency. 

 

Most Significant Strengths 

 Question:  What are the board’s most significant strengths? 

 Dedicated board members who put in a lot of time to educate themselves, review materials, and work for the good of 
the district and the health of the community.  

 Commitment to providing the highest quality of service to our community. 

 Financial strength of the organization.  Great progress in quality, patient satisfaction and relationships with physicians 
over the past few years are apparent. 

 Financial health and high quality health care services. 

 

Most Significant Weaknesses 

 Question:  What are the board’s most significant weaknesses? 

 A board chair who has created conflict with the CEO, key staff, and other board members.  Isolation from other local 
community agency boards as well as other district hospital boards - lack of education/models/visibility/lost 
opportunities for joint ventures. 

 Weakness in the ability to check and balance management and leadership.   

 Our team focus and spirit have lapsed.  We need to return to discussions on strategic issues; improving the health of our 
communities; and preparing for health care reform and the new tomorrow. 

 Lack of cohesion. 

 Failure to minimize lengthy reports in an effort to spend more time on strategic issues. 

 

131 of 134



29 

2014 Tahoe Forest Hospital District Governance Self-Assessment 
SUMMARY RESULTS 

Key Issues for Board Focus in the Next Year 

 Question:  What key issues should occupy the board’s time and attention in the next year? 

 Developing the Community Health Improvement Plan based on results of the health care needs assessment and 
working with community partner organizations.  CEO contract and/or succession. 

 Building public trust. 

 Reestablish trust in the community. 

 Select the most qualified CEO for the future. 

 Building trust, respect and consensus among the board members in order to do their job effectively during the coming 
year(s). 

 

Significant Trends the Board Must Understand and Deal with in the Next Year 

Question:  What do you see as the most significant trends that the board must be able to understand and deal with 
in the next year? 

 Implementation of the ACA will bring about changes that must be dealt with in a timely and effective manner. 

 Health care reform and how it will impact the hospital in the future. 

 Declining reimbursements and a need for some good, old fashioned leadership with a focus on day-to-day operations. 

 Increasing need to manage chronic disease and improve access to primary care.  Decreasing percentage of commercial 
insurance. 

 Compliance. 

 

Critical Factors to Address to Successfully Achieve Goals 

 Question:  What factors are most critical to be addressed if the hospital is to successfully achieve its goals? 

 Becoming a leaner financial organization while continuing to provide the high quality service that our patients have 
come to expect.  How to find the right price point to meet the community's demands while recognizing that we have a 
long tenured workforce that has higher compensation and benefits levels.  Finding the right mix of services for this 
community - its residents and visitors. 

 Leadership succession, ACA implementation, and restoration of public trust. 

 Continue to nurture the relationships and build trust between the board, management, employees and physicians to 
navigate the changes in health care delivery in the coming years. 

132 of 134



 

- 1 -  

BOARD SELF ASSESSMENT 
WORKSHOP TABLE 2015 

Short Term goals Draft
Action, 

Education  
What Responsible Party Measureables 

Action 
 

Establish a committee of community members to 
provide input to/ and receive information from the 
board and healthcare district. 

Governance 
Committee/Community 
Development Staff 

Committee 
established and 
meeting 

Action Improve outreach to community groups, community 
partners considering innovative settings 

Full Board/Community 
Development Staff 

Tracking of 
attendance at 
meetings 

Action 
 

Schedule public meetings with 1-2 board members to 
inform public and receive input. 

Full Board/Community 
Development Staff 

Meetings 
scheduled 

Action 
 

Hold board meetings in other locations throughout the 
geographic extent of the district. 

Full board/Community 
Development 

Meetings 
scheduled 

Action 
 

Invite community experts to participate as non-voting 
members of board committees. 

All Board 
Committees/Governance to 
develop policies 

Appointments to 
committees 

Action Designate a staff person as community liaison "Media 
Czar" 

CEO Liaison designated 

Education/
strategic 
planning 

Increase understanding of opportunities for competitive 
pricing in diagnostic imaging and strategic possibilities 
to meet community need. 

Finance Committee/CFO/full 
board 

Strategic plan 
item/goal 
developed 

Action Develop educational plan for board to capitalize on 
educational seminars and other sources. 

Governance Committee/Board 
Chair/ Full board 

Plan developed and 
implemented 

Education Improved understanding of board and management 
responsibility for compliance  

Full Board/Governance 
Committee 

Education plan 
implemented 

Action Focus on compliance efforts with improved 
engagement with hospital staff. 

Governance Committee/Full 
board 

Retreat discussion 

Action Increase the amount of time spent in discussion of 
strategic planning and quality at meetings with 
attention to performance against goals. 

Board Chair/CEO Agenda review 
demonstrates 
increased time 

Action Committees should address frequency of meetings and 
set yearly meeting schedule in advance, and evaluate 
meeting effectiveness. 

All Committees Meetings 
scheduled in 
advance 
 

133 of 134



 

- 2 -  

 
Action, 

Education  
What Responsible Party Measurables 

Action Improve the flow of committee information from to the full 
board. 

All Committee 
chairs/Board Chair/Clerk 
of the Board 

Communication 
plan developed 

Action 
 

Focus on Mission and Vision. Full Board/Governance 
Committee/ with Medical 
Staff, organization, public 

Retreat discussion 
Develop plan for 
mission and vision 
revision 

Action 
 

Repair relationship with community   Full Board Retreat discussion 

Action Improve board conduct/dynamics to improve community 
perception 

Full Board  Retreat discussion 

Action Bring stability to administration Full Board  Retreat Discussion 
Action Improve Board/C-suite interactions Staff/ 

Governance 
Put on calendar 
annually 

Action Improve timeliness and quality of Board materials Board Chair/Clerk of the 
Board/CEO 

Track posting of 
materials, 
improved meeting 
effectiveness 
surveys 

Action 
 

Improve connections between the C-suite, the board and 
the public. 

Board Chair, Full Board, 
CEO, Communications 
Staff 

Retreat Discussion 

Action Review and clarify policy for placing items on the agenda 
for open and closed session meetings of the board 

Governance 
Committee/Board Chair 

Policy reviewed 
and brought for 
approval to BOD 

134 of 134


	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	2015 Mar 17-18, 2015 Board Retreat_Agenda

	4.	ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	4.1.	Contracts
	4.1.1.	New
	a.	Krause _Rural PRIME Site Clerkship Director
	b.	Krause_Rural PRIME Site Medical Director
	c.	Samelson_PSA Medical Director Medical Education Committee
	B)  Executive Summary for contracts d - f
	d.	Thompson_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015
	e.	Taylor_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015
	f.	Coll_PSA_Training_and_Education_2015
	Exhibits to Contracts d - f



	5.	RETREAT ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION  - Day 1
	5.1.	Chief Executive Officer Search Process
	a)  Executive Summary
	b)  Memo to Board re: Internal process for recruitment of CEO

	5.2.	Board Order & Decorum
	a) ABD-12 Guidelines for the Conduct of Business by TFHD Board of Directors
	b)  ABD-17 Manner Of Governance For TFHD Board of Directors

	5.4.	Strategic Plan Review and Chief Executive Officer Goals
	a)  Strategic Plan - Fiscal Year 2015/2017


	10.	RETREAT ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION  - Day 2
	10.3.	Board Priorities and Goals
	a)  2014 Board Self Assessment
	b)  Board 2015 Draft Short Term Goals



